ﬁ Entry 1 School Information

Created: 07/05/2016
Last updated: 08/01/2016

Please be advised that you will need to complete this cover page (including signatures) before all of
the other tasks assigned to you by your authorizer are visible on your task page. While completing
this task, please ensure that you select the correct authorizer or you may not be assigned the
correct tasks.
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a. SCHOOL NAME AND BEDS#

(Select name from the drop down menu)

GROWING UP GREEN CS (NYC CHANCELLOR) 343000860952

b. CHARTER AUTHORIZER

(For technical reasons, please re-select authorizer name from the drop down menu).

NYCDOE-Authorized Charter School

c. DISTRICT / CSD OF LOCATION

NYC CSD 30

dl. SCHOOL INFORMATION

PRIMARY ADDRESS PHONE NUMBER FAX NUMBER EMAIL ADDRESS
39-27 28th St. greenberg@quacs
Long Island City, NY 347-642-4306 347-642-4310 '
11101 o

d2. PHONE CONTACT NUMBER FOR AFTER HOURS EMERGENCIES

Contact Name Matthew Greenberg

Title School Leader
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mailto:greenberg@gugcs.org

Emergency Phone Number (###-###-##H##) _

e. SCHOOL WEB ADDRESS (URL)

http://www.gugcs.org/

f. DATE OF INITIAL CHARTER

01/2009

g. DATE FIRST OPENED FOR INSTRUCTION

09/2009

hl. APPROVED SCHOOL MISSION (Regents, NYCDOE, and Buffalo BOE authorized
schools only)

MISSION STATEMENT

The Growing Up Green Charter School empowers children to be conscious, contributing members
of their community through a rigorous curriculum and an engaging green culture. Graduates of

GUGCS will be prepared to attend high-performing schools where their interdisciplinary academic
foundation, knowledge of sustainability, and strong sense of self sets them apart as leaders of the

future.

h2. KEY DESIGN ELEMENTS (Regents, NYCDOE, and Buffalo BOE authorized
schools only)

KEY DESIGN ELEMENTS (Brief description)

Variable 1 Green Education: Green principles inform the
curriculum, instruction and culture of our schools.
Green principles are those of sustainability by
creating a lifestyle or community that does not
exceed usage of anything for which we cannot be
responsible. Green lessons infuse our meals, code of
conduct, instructional materials, recycling practices,
and facility design. Green topics are integrated
throughout the curriculum.

Variable 2 Hands-On Learning in the Local Environment: Our
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http://www.gugcs.org/

Variable 3

Variable 4

Variable 5

Variable 6

model uses a multi-sensory approach that is
enhanced by weekly visits to the school’s Science
Lab and regular field trips. These experiential
activities engage students, promote retention of
knowledge and develop critical thinking skills.

Actionable Assessment System: Growing Up Green
uses internally developed and Common Core aligned
“Looking Forward, Looking Back” assessments to
guide curriculum development and instructional
planning, evaluate programs, and focus professional
development. Administered every six weeks, these
assessments provide actionable data for teachers
and school leaders to use in identifying areas for
student, class wide, and school wide growth.

Deliberate School Culture: We have built a
collaborative school culture that sustains students,
staff and families alike. As a result, there has been
limited faculty and staff turnover and virtually no
leadership turnover. We adopt the Responsive
Classroom and Developmental Design approach
school-wide at our elementary and middle school,
which has resulted in our school having a positive
culture with limited discipline issues and no
expulsions ever.

Professional Environment: Growing Up Green
expects teachers to be active learners and models of
lifelong learning for students. Formal training
opportunities occur during the summer and regular
Professional Development (PD) sessions throughout
the school year. Growing Up Green also has a robust
team of academic leaders all of whom collectively
provide teachers with support ranging from planning
support, to classroom observations and feedback, to
formal evaluations.

Student Support Services: At Growing Up Green, we
utilize many internal data systems, which quickly
identify struggling students so that we can
immediately apply supports and interventions to
ensure they make continued progress. Using a case-
study approach, our Successful Student Committee
(SSC) serves as a forum for teachers and staff to
collaborate, share differentiation strategies, and
design effective academic and behavioral
interventions for struggling students. Additionally,
Growing Up Green offers an Integrated Co-Teaching
(ICT) class on every grade as well as push-in and
pull-out Special Education Teacher Support Services.
Our English Language Learner (ELL) Coordinator and
teachers provide an immersion approach to
language acquisition. We also have multiple
counselors on staff to support students’ social
emotional needs.
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Variable 7 (No response)

Variable 8 (No response)
Variable 9 (No response)
Variable 10 (No response)

i. TOTAL ENROLLMENT ON JUNE 30, 2016

691

j- GRADES SERVED IN SCHOOL YEAR 2015-16
Check all that apply

Grades Served K, 1,2, 3,4,5,6,7

k1l. DOES THE SCHOOL CONTRACT WITH A CHARTER OR EDUCATIONAL
MANAGEMENT ORGANIZATION?

No

Page 2

11. FACILITIES

Does the school maintain or operate multiple sites?

Yes, 2 sites

12. SCHOOL SITES

Please list the sites where the school will operate for the upcoming school year.

Physical Phone District/CSD Grades School at Full  Facilities

Address Number Served at Capacity at Agreement
Site Site

39-27 28th
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Site 1 (same  St.

(347)642-

as primary Long Island 4306
site) City, NY

11101

36-49
St.

Site 2 Long Island

11th

(347)642-
4306

City, NY

11101

Site 3

CSD 30

CSD 30

K-5th Yes

6th-7th No

12a. Please provide the contact information for Site 1.

School Leader

Operational Leader

Compliance
Contact

Complaint Contact

Work Phone

Matthew Greenberg _

Massomeh Spahr

Roseanne Baker

Lauren Barkan

Alternate Phone

I13. Please provide the contact information for Site 2.

School Leader

Operational Leader

Compliance
Contact

Complaint Contact

Work Phone

Matthew Greenberg _

Massomeh Spahr
Roseanne Baker

Jennifer Slutak

Alternate Phone

ml. Is the school or are the school sites co-located?

No
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Rent/Lease

Rent/Lease

Email Address

11

Email Address

1]



nl. Were there any revisions to the school’s charter during the 2015-16 school
year? (Please include approved or pending material and non-material charter
revisions).

No

o. Name and Position of Individual(s) Who Completed the 2015-16 Annual Report.

Roseanne Baker, Assessment Coordinator and Gina Palma, Director of Finance and Personnel

p. Our signatures below attest that all of the information contained herein is
truthful and accurate and that this charter school is in compliance with all
aspects of its charter, and with all pertinent Federal, State, and local laws,
regulations, and rules. We understand that if any information in any part of this
report is found to have been deliberately misrepresented, that will constitute
grounds for the revocation of our charter. Check YES if you agree and then use
the mouse on your PC or the stylist on your mobile device to sign your name).

Responses Selected:

Yes

Signature, Head of Charter School

-

Signature, President of the Board of Trustees

6 of 7



Date

2016/07/20

Thank you.
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ﬁ Entry 2 Link

Last updated: 07/05/2016

Page 1
1. NEW YORK STATE REPORT CARD

Provide a direct URL or web link to the most recent New York State School Report
Card for the charter school (See https://reportcards.nysed.gov/).

(Charter schools completing year one will not yet have a School Report Card or link to one. Please
type "URL is not available" in the space provided).

https://data.nysed.gov/reportcard.php?
instid=800000063974&year=2015&createreport=1&allchecked=1&enrollment=1&avqgclasssize=
1&freelunch=1&attendance=1&suspensions=1&teacherqual=1&teacherturnover=1&staffcounts
=1&38ELA=1&38MATH=1&48SCI=1&naep=1&elemELA=1&elemMATH=1&elemSci=1&unweighte
d=1#.V3vkgBGWhcA.email
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https://data.nysed.gov/reportcard.php?instid=800000063974&year=2015&createreport=1&allchecked=1&enrollment=1&avgclasssize=1&freelunch=1&attendance=1&suspensions=1&teacherqual=1&teacherturnover=1&staffcounts=1&38ELA=1&38MATH=1&48SCI=1&naep=1&elemELA=1&elemMATH=1&elemSci=1&unweighted=1#.V3vkgBGWhcA.email
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Created: 07/20/2016
Last updated: 11/01/2016
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Entry 3 Progress

PROGRESS TOWARD CHARTER GOALS

The following tables reflect formatting in the online portal required for Board of Regents-authorized
charter schools and NYCDOE-authorized charter schools only. Schools should list Progress Toward
Charter Goals by August 1, 2016. If the goals are based on student performance data that the
school will not have access to before August 1, 2016 (e.g., the NYS Assessment results), explain
this in the "2015-2016 Progress Toward Attainment of Goal" column. The information can be
updated when available. Please complete and submit no later than November 1, 2016.

1. ACADEMIC STUDENT PERFORMANCE GOALS

2015-16 Progress Toward Attainment of Academic Goals

Academic Goal 1

Academic Student
Performance Goal

Throughout the
course of the
school’s next
charter term, the
school will show
progress towards
achieving 75
percent of 3rd—8th
graders’, who have
been enrolled at
the school on BEDS
day for at least two
consecutive years,
performing at or
above Level 3 on
the New York State
ELA examination.

Measure Used to
Evaluate Progress
Toward Attainment

of Goal

New York State
Testing Program
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Goal - Met, Partially
Met, or Not Met

Goal Met

In 2015, 32.93% of
students in Grades
3-8 who had been
enrolled at the
school on BEDS day
for at least two
consecutive years
achieved
proficiency on the
NYS ELA exam. In
2016, 49.17% of
students in Grades
3-8 who had been
enrolled at the
school on BEDS day
for at least two
consecutive years
achieved

If Not Met, Describe
Efforts School Will
Take



Academic Goal 2

Each year, the
school’s Aggregate
Performance Index
on the NYS ELA
exam will meet the
Annual Measurable
Objective set forth
in the NYS NCLB
accountability
system.

Each year, the
percent of all
tested students in
each grade level,

New York State
Education
Department Report
Card
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proficiency on the
NYS ELA exam.

Results not
available
November 1st

Goal Partially Met

The percent of all
tested students in
Grades 3-6 who
performed at or
above Level 3 on
the NYS ELA exam
was greater than
the percent of all
students in CSD 30
in the same tested
grade level who
performed at or
above Level 3. In
Grade 3, 53.49% of
students at our
school performed
above Level 3,
while 42.80% of
CSD 30 students
performed above
Level 3. In Grade 4,
51.19% of students
at our school
performed above
Level 3, while
45.40% of CSD 30

Implement new
reading trackers,
5x per year
(Elementary
School)

Implementing
additional aspects
of running record
testing to include
written assessment
(Middle School)

Revised unit plans
to
connect/integrate
more content areas
(Elementary
School)

Combined
ELA/Social Studies
to Humanities
course (2x period)
to integrate
content into
literacy (Middle
School)

Assess reading
levels beyond 1
year in F&P Testing;
continue to assess
as high as needed
for grades 3-5
(Elementary
School)

Middle School LFLB
exam to have all
literacy standards



Academic Goal 3

3rd-8th, who
perform at or
above Level 3 on
the NYS ELA exam
will be greater than
the percent of all
students in CSD 30
in the same tested
grade who perform

at or above Level 3.

This will be
measured by an
analysis of
performance
compared to CSDs
conducted by
NYCDOE.

New York State
Testing Program

3 of 24

students performed
above Level 3. In
Grade 5, 48.81% of
students at our
school performed
above Level 3,
while 38.60% of
CSD 30 students
performed above
Level 3. In Grade 6,
43.90% of students
at our school
performed above
Level 3, while
43.30% of CSD 30
students performed
above Level 3.

However, in Grade
7, the percent of all
tested students
who performed at
or above Level 3 on
the NYS ELA exam
at our school was
slightly below the
percent of all
students in CSD 30
in the same tested
grade level who
performed at or
above Level 3. In
Grade 7, 42.22% of
our students
performed above
Level 3, while
43.40% of students
in CSD 30
performed above
Level 3.

on all exams to
better measure
growth and set
goals throughout
school year

A meeting with
each teacherin
October to run
through academic
needs/strengths to
set goals
(Elementary
School)

A meeting with
staff members to
review State
Testing data to set
goals and revise
instruction

Content area
coaching cycles
every 6 weeks
(math, literacy,
Explore & Discover
time) (Elementary
School)

Teacher coaching
by assessment
coordinators to
align with
assessments (LFLB,
Fast Bridge, State,
etc.)

All K-2
math/literacy LFLB
assessments
provided to
teachers at start of
school year

The assessment
coordinator at
Middle School will
join math/literacy
department
meetings to insure
curriculum
alignment to
assessments



Academic Goal 4

Each year, each 3rd
through 8th grade-
level cohort of
students (i.e.
students who have
been enrolled at
the School for at
least 2 consecutive
BEDS dates) will
reduce by one-
quarter the gap
between the
percent at or above
Level 3 on the
previous year’s
State ELA exam
and 75% at or
above Level 3 on
the current year’s
NYS ELA exam. If
the number of
students scoring
above proficiency
in a grade level
cohort exceeded 75
percent on the
previous year’s NYS
ELA exam, the
grade level cohort
is expected to
demonstrate some
growth (above 75
percent) in the
current year.

New York State
Testing Program

4 of 24

Goal Met

All Grades (3-8)
exceeded the
growth goals set to
reduce by one-
quarter the gap
between the
percent at or above
Level 3 on the
previous year's
State ELA exam
and 75% at or
above Level 3 on
the current year's
NYS ELA exam.

Grade 3 students in
2016 did not have
a growth goal
because this was
their first year
taking the ELA
State Exam.

Grade 4 students
achieved 50.00% at
or above Level 3,
while their growth
goal was 45.08%.

Grade 5 students
achieved 49.40% at
or above Level 3,
while their growth
goal was 44.70%.

Grade 6 students
achieved 49.23% at
or above Level 3,
while their growth
goal was 42.38%.

Grade 7 students
achieved 43.37% at
or above Level 3,
while their growth
goal was 41.63%.

Implement new
reading trackers,
5x per year
(Elementary
School)



Academic Goal 5

Each year, 75% of
all students
(Grades 1-8) who
were enrolled at
GUGCS for at least
two consecutive
BEDS dates, will
perform at or
above grade level
on the NWEA MAP
Reading test.

FastBridge Learning

Goal Not Met

51.29% of students
in Grades 1-8 who
were enrolled in
GUGCS for at least
two consecutive
BEDS dates
performed at or
above grade level.

Implementing
additional aspects
of running record
testing to include
written assessment
(Middle School)

Revised unit plans
to
connect/integrate
more content areas
(Elementary
School)

Combined
ELA/Social Studies
to Humanities
course (2x period)
to integrate
content into
literacy (Middle
School)

Assess reading
levels beyond 1
year in F&P Testing;
continue to assess
as high as needed
for grades 3-5
(Elementary
School)

Middle School LFLB
exam to have all
literacy standards
on all exams to
better measure
growth and set
goals throughout
school year

A meeting with
each teacherin
October to run
through academic
needs/strengths to
set goals
(Elementary
School)

A meeting with
staff members to
review Fast Bridge
National Norm
Testing data to set
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goals and revise
instruction
Content area
coaching cycles
every 6 weeks
(math, literacy,
Explore & Discover
time) (Elementary
School)

Teacher coaching
by assessment
coordinators to
align with
assessments (LFLB,
Fast Bridge, State,
etc.)

All K-2
math/literacy LFLB
assessments
provided to
teachers at start of
school year

The assessment
coordinator at
Middle School will
join math/literacy
department
meetings to insure
curriculum
alignment to
assessments

Implement new
reading trackers,
5x per year
(Elementary
School)

Implementing
additional aspects
of running record
testing to include
written assessment
(Middle School)

Revised unit plans
to
connect/integrate
more content areas
(Elementary
School)



Academic Goal 6

Each year, each 3rd
through 8th grade-
level cohort of
students (i.e.
students who have
been enrolled at
the School for at
least 2 consecutive
BEDS dates) will
reduce by one-
quarter the gap
between the
average NCE score
on the previous
year's NWEA MAP
Reading exam and
an NCE of 50 for
the current year’s
NWEA MAP exam
by grade. If the
average NCE score
of a grade level
cohort exceeded an
NCE of 50 on the
previous year’s
NWEA MAP Reading
exam, the grade
level cohort is
expected to
demonstrate some
growth above an
average NCE score
of 50 in the current
year.

FastBridge Learning
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Goal Partially Met

The Growth Goal
for Spring 2016
was 56.40% of
students
performing at or
above grade level.
51.29% of students
were performing at
or above grade
level.

Grade 2 exceeded
growth goals set.
Grade 2 students
achieved 53.40% at
or above grade
level, while their
goals was 43.50%.

Combined
ELA/Social Studies
to Humanities
course (2x period)
to integrate
content into
literacy (Middle
School)

Assess reading
levels beyond 1
year in F&P Testing;
continue to assess
as high as needed
for grades 3-5
(Elementary
School)

Middle School LFLB
exam to have all
literacy standards
on all exams to
better measure
growth and set
goals throughout
school year

A meeting with
each teacherin
October to run
through academic
needs/strengths to
set goals
(Elementary
School)

A meeting with
staff members to
review Fast Bridge
National Norm
Testing data to set
goals and revise
instruction
Content area
coaching cycles
every 6 weeks
(math, literacy,
Explore & Discover
time) (Elementary
School)

Teacher coaching
by assessment
coordinators to
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Goal Partially Met

73.8% of students
(Grades K-5) who
have been enrolled

align with
assessments (LFLB,
Fast Bridge, State,
etc.)

All K-2
math/literacy LFLB
assessments
provided to
teachers at start of
school year

The assessment
coordinator at
Middle School will
join math/literacy
department
meetings to insure
curriculum
alignment to
assessments

Implement new
reading trackers,
5x per year
(Elementary
School)

Implementing
additional aspects
of running record
testing to include
written assessment
(Middle School)

Revised unit plans
to
connect/integrate
more content areas
(Elementary
School)

Combined
ELA/Social Studies
to Humanities
course (2x period)
to integrate
content into
literacy (Middle
School)

Assess reading
levels beyond 1
year in F&P Testing;



Academic Goal 7

Each year, 75% of
all tested students
(Grades K-5) who
have been enrolled
in GUGCS for at
least two
consecutive BEDS
dates will perform
at or above grade
level on the
Fountas and Pinnell
Benchmark
Assessment
System.

Fountas and Pinnell
Benchmark
Assessment
System
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in GUGCS for at
least two
consecutive BEDS
dates performed at
or above grade
level on Fountas
and Pinnell
Benchmark
Assessments.

In Grade 2, 85.1%
of students who
have been enrolled
for at least two
consecutive BEDS
dates performed at
or above grade
level.

In Grade 3, 91.1%
of students who
have been enrolled
for at least two
consecutive BEDS
dates performed at
or above grade
level.

In Grade 4, 75.3%
of students who
have been enrolled
for at least two
consecutive BEDS
dates performed at
or above grade
level.

continue to assess
as high as needed
for grades 3-5
(Elementary
School)

Middle School LFLB
exam to have all
literacy standards
on all exams to
better measure
growth and set
goals throughout
school year

A meeting with
each teacherin
October to run
through academic
needs/strengths to
set goals
(Elementary
School)

A meeting with
staff members to
review Fast Bridge
National Norm
Testing data to set
goals and revise
instruction
Content area
coaching cycles
every 6 weeks
(math, literacy,
Explore & Discover
time) (Elementary
School)

Teacher coaching
by assessment
coordinators to
align with
assessments (LFLB,
Fast Bridge, State,
etc.)

All K-2
math/literacy LFLB
assessments
provided to
teachers at start of
school year

The assessment



Each grade level of
students (K-5) who
remained in the
school for the

Goal Partially Met

Students in Grades
K-2 who remained
in the school for an
entire year showed
an average of at
least 3 levels of
growth on the
Fountas & Pinnell
Benchmark
Assessment
between
September and
June. Students in
Kindergarten grew
an average of 3.34

coordinator at
Middle School will
join math/literacy
department
meetings to insure
curriculum
alignment to
assessments

Implement new
reading trackers,
5x per year
(Elementary
School)

Implementing
additional aspects
of running record
testing to include
written assessment
(Middle School)

Revised unit plans
to
connect/integrate
more content areas
(Elementary
School)

Combined
ELA/Social Studies
to Humanities
course (2x period)
to integrate
content into
literacy (Middle
School)

Assess reading
levels beyond 1
year in F&P Testing;
continue to assess
as high as needed
for grades 3-5
(Elementary
School)

Middle School LFLB
exam to have all
literacy standards
on all exams to
better measure
growth and set
goals throughout



Academic Goal 8

entire year will
show at least 3
levels of growth on
the Fountas &
Pinnell Benchmark
Assessment
System between
September and
June of each school
year.

Fountas and Pinnell
Benchmark
Assessment
System
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reading levels,
students in Grade 1
grew an average of
4.47 reading levels,
and students in
Grade 2 grew an
average of 3.16
reading levels.

Students in Grades
3-5 who remained
in the school for an
entire year did not
reach this goal.
Students in Grade 3
grew an average of
2.41 reading levels,
students in Grade 4
grew an average of
2.61 reading levels,
and students in
Grade 5 grew an
average of 2.36
reading levels.

school year

A meeting with
each teacherin
October to run
through academic
needs/strengths to
set goals
(Elementary
School)

A meeting with
staff members to
review Fast Bridge
National Norm
Testing data to set
goals and revise
instruction
Content area
coaching cycles
every 6 weeks
(math, literacy,
Explore & Discover
time) (Elementary
School)

Teacher coaching
by assessment
coordinators to
align with
assessments (LFLB,
Fast Bridge, State,
etc.)

All K-2
math/literacy LFLB
assessments
provided to
teachers at start of
school year

The assessment
coordinator at
Middle School will
join math/literacy
department
meetings to insure
curriculum
alignment to
assessments



2. Do have more academic goals to add?

Yes

2015-16 Progress Toward Attainment of Academic Goals

Academic Goal 9

Academic Goal 10

Academic Student
Performance Goal

Throughout the
course of the
school’s next
charter term, , the
school will show
progress towards
achieving 75
percent of 3rd—8th
graders’, who have
been enrolled at
the school on BEDS
day for at least two
consecutive years,
performing at or
above Level 3 on
the New York State
Mathematics
examination.

Each year, the
school’s aggregate
Performance Index
on the NYS Math
exam will meet the
Annual Measurable
Objective set forth
in the NYS NCLB
accountability
system

Measure Used to
Evaluate Progress
Toward Attainment
of Goal

New York State
Testing Program

New York State
Education
Department Report
Card
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Goal - Met, Partially
Met, or Not Met

Goal Met

In 2015, 52.55% of
students in Grades
3-8 who had been
enrolled at the
school on BEDS day
for at least two
consecutive years
achieved
proficiency on the
NYS Math exam. In
2016, 54.90% of
students in Grades
3-8 who had been
enrolled at the
school on BEDS day
for at least two
consecutive years
achieved
proficiency on the
NYS Math exam.

Results not
available
November 1st

Goal Partially Met

The percent of all
tested students in
Grades 3-6 who
performed at or
above Level 3 on

If Not Met, Describe
Efforts School Will
Take

There will be three



Academic Goal 11

Each year, the
percent of all
tested students in
each grade level,
3rd-8th, who
perform at or
above Level 3 on
the NYS Math exam
will be greater than
the percent all
students in CSD 30
in the same tested
grade who perform

at or above Level 3.

This will be
measured by an
analysis of
performance
compared to CSDs
conducted by
NYCDOE.

New York State
Testing Program
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the NYS Math exam
was greater than
the percent of all
students in CSD 30
in the same tested
grade level who
performed at or
above Level 3. In
Grade 3, 59.30% of
students at our
school performed
above Level 3,
while 43.70% of
CSD 30 students
performed above
Level 3. In Grade 4,
63.86% of students
at our school
performed above
Level 3, while
47.10% of CSD 30
students performed
above Level 3. In
Grade 5, 60.00% of
students at our
school performed
above Level 3,
while 41.10% of
CSD 30 students
performed above
Level 3. In Grade 6,
47.56% of students
at our school
performed above
Level 3, while
46.10% of CSD 30
students performed
above Level 3.

However, in Grade
7, the percent of all
tested students
who performed at
or above Level 3 on
the NYS Math exam
at our school was
below the percent
of all students in
CSD 30 in the same
tested grade level
who performed at
or above Level 3. In
Grade 7, 30.00% of
our students
performed above

full time, math
coordinators for
each section of
school (K-2, 3-5, 6-
8); change from 2
part-time

A meeting with
each teacherin
October to run
through academic
needs/strengths to
set goals
(Elementary
School)

A meeting with
staff members to
review State
Testing data to set
goals and revise
instruction

Content area
coaching cycles
every 6 weeks
(math, literacy,
Explore & Discover
time) (Elementary
School)

Teacher coaching
by assessment
coordinators to
align with
assessments (LFLB,
Fast Bridge, State,
etc.)

All K-2
math/literacy LFLB
assessments
provided to
teachers at start of
school year

The assessment
coordinator at
Middle School will
join math/literacy
department
meetings to insure
curriculum
alignment to
assessments



Academic Goal 12

Each year, each 3rd
through 8th grade-
level cohort of
students (i.e.
students who have
been enrolled at
the School for at
least 2 consecutive
BEDS dates) will
reduce by one-
quarter the gap
between the
percent at or above
Level 3 on the
previous year’s
State Math exam
and 75% at or
above Level 3 on
the current year’s
NYS Math exam. If
the number of
students scoring
above proficiency
in a grade level
cohort exceeded 75
percent on the
previous year’s NYS
Math exam, the
grade level cohort
is expected to
demonstrate some
growth (above 75
percent) in the
current year.

New York State
Testing Program
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Level 3, while
41.60% of students
in CSD 30
performed above
Level 3.

Goal Partially Met

Grades 3-5
exceeded the
growth goals set to
reduce by one-
quarter the gap
between the
percent at or above
Level 3 on the
previous year's
State Math exam
and 75% at or
above Level 3 on
the current year's
NYS Math exam.
However, Grades 6-
7 did not reach this
goal.

Grade 3 students in
2016 did not have
a growth goal
because this was
their first year
taking the Math
State Exam.

Grade 4 students
achieved 64.00% at
or above Level 3,
while their growth
goal was 57.30%.

Grade 5 students
achieved 60.71% at
or above Level 3,
while their growth
goal was 56.25%.

Grade 6 students
achieved 56.92% at
or above Level 3,
while their growth
goal was 68.03%.

There will be three
full time, math
coordinators for
each section of
school (K-2, 3-5, 6-
8); change from 2
part-time

A meeting with
each teacherin
October to run
through academic
needs/strengths to
set goals
(Elementary
School)

A meeting with
staff members to
review State
Testing data to set
goals and revise
instruction

Content area
coaching cycles
every 6 weeks
(math, literacy,
Explore & Discover
time) (Elementary
School)

Teacher coaching
by assessment
coordinators to
align with
assessments (LFLB,
Fast Bridge, State,
etc.)

All K-2
math/literacy LFLB
assessments
provided to
teachers at start of
school year

The assessment
coordinator at



Academic Goal 13

Each year, 75% of
all students
(Grades 1-8) who
were enrolled at
GUGCS for at least
two consecutive
BEDS dates, will
perform at or
above grade level
on the NWEA MAP

FastBridge Learning
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Grade 7 students
achieved 31.33% at
or above Level 3,
while their growth
goal was 51.08%.

Goal Not Met

39.70% of students
in Grades 1-8 who
were enrolled in
GUGCS for at least
two consecutive
BEDS dates
performed at or

Middle School will
join math/literacy
department
meetings to insure
curriculum
alignment to
assessments

There will be three
full time, math
coordinators for
each section of
school (K-2, 3-5, 6-
8); change from 2
part-time

This year our
school used
FastBridge Learning
as our nationally
normed
assessment, while
in years past we
have used NWEA
MAP. This may
partially explain the
discrepancies we
saw in scores
(particularly in
Math) from the
prior year to this
year. As our
students adjust to
this new system
and we have data
from prior years,
hopefully this
assessment will
become a more
reliable means to
measure our
students by.

A meeting with
each teacherin
October to run
through academic
needs/strengths to
set goals
(Elementary
School)

A meeting with
staff members to



Math test.
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above grade level.

review Fast Bridge
National Norm
Testing data to set
goals and revise
instruction
Content area
coaching cycles
every 6 weeks
(math, literacy,
Explore & Discover
time) (Elementary
School)

Teacher coaching
by assessment
coordinators to
align with
assessments (LFLB,
Fast Bridge, State,
etc.)

All K-2
math/literacy LFLB
assessments
provided to
teachers at start of
school year

The assessment
coordinator at
Middle School will
join math/literacy
department
meetings to insure
curriculum
alignment to
assessments

There will be three
full time, math
coordinators for
each section of
school (K-2, 3-5, 6-
8); change from 2
part-time

This year our
school used
FastBridge Learning
as our nationally
normed
assessment, while
in years past we
have used NWEA



Academic Goal 14

Each year, each 3rd
through 8th grade-
level cohort of
students (i.e.
students who have
been enrolled at
the School for at
least 2 consecutive
BEDS dates) will
reduce by one-
quarter the gap
between the
average NCE score
on the previous
year's NWEA MAP
Math exam and an
NCE of 50 for the
current year’s
NWEA MAP exam
by grade. If the
average NCE score
of a grade level
cohort exceeded an
NCE of 50 on the
previous year’s
NWEA MAP Math
exam, the grade
level cohort is
expected to
demonstrate some
growth above an
average NCE score
of 50 in the current
year.

FastBridge Learning
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Goal Not Met

The Growth Goal on
the Math test for
Spring 2016 was
63.80% of students
performing at or
above grade level.
39.70% of students
were performing at
or above grade
level.

MAP. This may
partially explain the
discrepancies we
saw in scores
(particularly in
Math) from the
prior year to this
year. As our
students adjust to
this new system
and we have data
from prior years,
hopefully this
assessment will
become a more
reliable means to
measure our
students by.

A meeting with
each teacherin
October to run
through academic
needs/strengths to
set goals
(Elementary
School)

A meeting with
staff members to
review Fast Bridge
National Norm
Testing data to set
goals and revise
instruction
Content area
coaching cycles
every 6 weeks
(math, literacy,
Explore & Discover
time) (Elementary
School)

Teacher coaching
by assessment
coordinators to
align with
assessments (LFLB,
Fast Bridge, State,
etc.)

All K-2
math/literacy LFLB
assessments
provided to



Academic Goal 15

Academic Goal 16

Throughout the
course of the
school’s next
charter term, the
school will show
progress towards
achieving 75
percent of 4th and
8th graders’, who
have been enrolled
at the school on
BEDS day for at
least two
consecutive years,
performing at or
above Level 3 on
the New York State
Science
examination

New York State
Testing Program

Throughout the
course of the
school’s next
charter term,
GUGCS will show
progress towards
earning a score of
B or better on the
“Progress” section
of the citywide
Progress Report

New York City
Department of
Education School
Quality Guide

3. Do have more academic goals to add?

Yes

Goal Met

94.81% of students
in Grade 4 who
were enrolled in
GUGCS for at least
two consecutive
BEDS dates
performed at or
above a Level 3 on
the New York State
Science
examination.

GUGCS achieved
Meeting Target on
the

Student
Achievement
Section

on the 2014-2015
NYCDOE School
Quality

Guide

2015-16 Progress Toward Attainment of Academic Goals
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teachers at start of
school year

The assessment
coordinator at
Middle School will
join math/literacy
department
meetings to insure
curriculum
alignment to
assessments



Academic Student Measure Used to Goal - Met, Partially If Not Met, Describe

Performance Goal Evaluate Progress Met, or Not Met Efforts School Will
Toward Attainment Take
of Goal

Each year, the
school will make
. On the 2015 NYSED
AYP in Math, ELA New York State
. : Report Card GUGCS
. and Science and Education
Academic Goal 17 . : made
will be deemed in Department Report
u - AYP for Math, ELA,
Good Standing” on Card and
its NYSED Report .
Science Tests.

Card

Goal Met

Academic Goal 18
Academic Goal 19
Academic Goal 20
Academic Goal 21
Academic Goal 22
Academic Goal 23
Academic Goal 24
Academic Goal 25
Academic Goal 26
Academic Goal 27
Academic Goal 28
Academic Goal 29

Academic Goal 30

Page 2

4. ORGANIZATIONAL GOALS

2015-16 Progress Toward Attainment of Organizational Goals

Organizational Goal Measure Used to Goal - Met, Partially If Not Met, Describe
Evaluate Progress Met, or Not Met Efforts School Will
Take
This will be

19 of 24



Org Goal 1

Org Goal 2

Org Goal 3

Each year, the
school will have an
average daily
student attendance
rate of at least
95%.

Each year, 95% of
all

students enrolled
on the

last

day of the school
year will

return the following
September.

Each year, the
school will
comply will all
applicable
laws, rules,
regulations and
contract terms

including but

not limited to, the
New York

Charter Schools
Act, the

New York Freedom
of

Information Law,
the New

York Open Meetings
Law,

the Individuals with
Disabilities

Education Act
and the Family

measured by
the school and
reported

data from an
attendance
tracking system
such as

ATS. The figure will

be

calculated by: sum

of the

total number of
days

absent for each
child in the
school total
number of
possible school
days times
(total number of
students)

Enrollment
information

Board Policies and
Meetings
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Goal Met

GUGCS had a daily
attendance of 95%

Goal Met

95.4% of all
students will return
to GUGCS for the
following school
year.

Goal Met

GUGCS has
generally and
substantially
complied with

all applicable laws,
rules

and regulations.
The

school's staff has
been

trained with
respect to all
applicable
procedures and
systems. The staff
is

empowered to
identify and
address any
possible legal

or compliance



Org Goal 4

Org Goal 5

Educational
Rights and Privacy
Act.

Per the 2010
amendment

to the Charter
Schools Act,

the school shall
demonstrate good
faith

efforts to attract,
retain,

and meet or
exceeded
enrollment and
retention

targets as Enrollment and

prescribed by Retention
the Board of Marketing
Regents

through the State

Education of

students with

disabilities, English

language learners,

and students who

are

eligible applicants

for the

free and reduced

price

lunch program.

Per the charter

agreement,

each year, student

enrollment will be

at or

within 15% below

full

enrollment as

delineated in Enrollment
the approved information
renewal

application. This

will be

measured each

year by an

analysis of student

enrollment figures

in ATS.
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issues and
report these
matters to the
Board or its
counsel.

Goal Met

GUGCS has enlisted
parents of English
Language Learners
(ELLs) to speak on
our behalf at
community
organizations,
mentioning the
services provided
to ELLs. GUGCS has
sent out marketing
materials
translated in the
most common
languages spoken
in CSD 30. GUGCS
has report cards
and other
important
information
translated for
families that don't
speak English.

Goal Met

GUGCS was at
98.2% enroliment.



5. Do you have more organizational goals to add?

Yes

2015-16 Progress Toward Attainment of Organizational Goals

Org Goal 6

Organizational Goal Measure Used to
Evaluate Progress

Each year, parents
will

express satisfaction
with

the school’s
program,

based on the
NYCDOE

Learning
Environment
Survey in which the
school

will receive scores
of 7.5 or

higher in each of
the four

survey domains:
Academic
Expectations,
Communication,
Engagement, and
Safety

and Respect. The
school

will only have met
this goal

if 50% or more
parents
participate in the
survey.

NYC School Survey

Each year, teachers

will

express satisfaction
with

school leadership
and

professional
development
opportunities as
determined by the
teacher

22 of 24

Goal - Met, Partially
Met, or Not Met

Parents had a 95%
positive response
on the NYCDOE
Learning
Environment
Survey during the
2015-2016 school
year.

If Not Met, Describe
Efforts School Will
Take



Org Goal 7

Org Goal 8

Org Goal 9

Org Goal 10
Org Goal 11
Org Goal 12
Org Goal 13
Org Goal 14

Org Goal 15

section of the
NYCDOE

Learning
Environment
Survey in which the
school

will receive scores
of 7.5 or

higher in each of
the four

survey domains:
Academic
Expectations,
Communication,
Engagement, and
Safety

and Respect. The
school

will only have met
this goal

if 50% or more
teachers
participate in the
survey.

Each year, 85% of
teachers whose
contract

was renewed at the
end of

the previous school
year

will return to teach
at

GUGCS.

6. FINANCIAL GOALS

NYC School Survey

Staff Employment
Information

Teachers had an
86% positive
response on the
NYCDOE Learning
Environment
Survey during the
2015-2016 school
year.

Goal Met

85% of teachers
whose

contract was
renewed at

the end of the
previous

school year will
return to

teach at GUGCS.

2015-16 Progress Toward Attainment of Financial Goals
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Financial Goal 1

Financial Goal 2

Financial Goal 3

Financial Goal 4

Financial Goal 5

Financial Goals

Each year, the
School will
undergo an
independent
financial audit that
will

result in an
unqualified
opinion and no
major
findings.

Each year, the
School will
operate on a
balanced
budget and
maintain a
stable cash flow.

Measure Used to
Evaluate Progress

Independent
Financial
Audit
Findings

Monthly and
weekly

financial
statements are
prepared, analyzed
by the

Director of Finance
& Personnel and
then

distributed to the
school

admin and board of
directors. Year
Ending June 30,
2016

Audited Financial
Statement
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Goal - Met, Partially
Met, or Not Met

Goal Met

Monthly and
weekly

financial
statements are
prepared, analyzed
by the

Director of Finance
& Personnel and
then

distributed to the
school

admin and board of
directors. Year
Ending

June 30, 2016
Audited

Financial
Statement.

Goal Met

The school
maintained a
positive operating
and cash

surplus throughout
the year

and kept within the
limits of

the budget of
operating
expenses
throughout the
school year.

If Not Met, Describe
Efforts School Will
Take



ﬂ Entry 4 Expenditures per Child

Created: 07/05/2016
Last updated: 07/27/2016

Page 1

Financial Information

This information is required of ALL charter schools. Provide the following measures of fiscal
performance of the charter school in Appendix B (Total Expenditures and Administrative
Expenditures Per Child):

1. Total Expenditures Per Child

To calculate ‘“Total Expenditures per Child’ take total expenditures (from the unaudited 2015-16
Schedule of Functional Expenses) and divide by the year end FTE student enrollment. (Integers Only.
No dollar signs or commas).

Note: The information on the Schedule of Functional Expenses on pages 41-43 of the
Audit Guide can help schools locate the amounts to use in the two per pupil calculations:

http://www.pl12.nysed.gov/psc/AuditGuide.html

Line 1: Total Expenditures 11680457
Line 2: Year End FTE student enroliment 691
Line 3: Divide Line 1 by Line 2 16893

2. Administrative Expenditures per Child

To calculate ‘Administrative Expenditures per Child' To calculate “Administrative Expenditures
per Child” first add together the following:

1. Take the relevant portion from the ‘personnel services cost’ row and the ‘management and
general’ column (from the unaudited 2015-16 Schedule of Functional Expenses)

2. Any contracted administrative/management fee paid to other organizations or corporations

3. Take the total from above and divide it by the year-end FTE enrollment. The relevant portion that

1of2


http://www.p12.nysed.gov/psc/AuditGuide.html

must be included in this calculation is defined as follows:

Administrative Expenditures: Administration and management of the charter school includes the
activities and personnel of the offices of the chief school officer, the finance or business offices,
school operations personnel, data management and reporting, human resources, technology, etc. It
also includes those administrative and management services provided by other organizations or
corporations on behalf of the charter school for which the charter school pays a fee or other
compensation. Do not include the FTE of personnel whose role is to directly support the
instructional program.

Notes:

The information on the Schedule of Functional Expenses on pages 41-43 of the Audit
Guide can help schools locate the amounts to use in the two per pupil calculations:
http://www.pl12.nysed.gov/psc/AuditGuide.html.

Employee benefit costs or expenditures should not be reported in the above
calculations.

Line 1: Relevant Personnel Services Cost (Row) 800813
Line 2: Management and General Cost (Column) 403536
Line 3: Sum of Line 1 and Line 2 1204349
Line 5: Divide Line 3 by the Year End FTE student 1742
enrollment

Thank you.

20f2


http://www.p12.nysed.gov/psc/AuditGuide.html

ﬁ Entry 6a Audited Statements

Regents, NYCDOE and Buffalo BOE authorized schools should enter the financial contact information
requested and upload the independent auditor's report and internal controls reports as one
combined file.

Page 1

School Based Fiscal Contact Information

School Based Fiscal School Based Fiscal School Based Fiscal
Contact Name Contact Email Contact Phone

Audit Firm Contact Information

School Audit School Audit School Audit Years Working With
Contact Name Contact Email Contact Phone This Audit Firm

Gus Saliba — O

If Applicable:

Outsourced Outsourced Outsourced Outsourced Years Working
Financial Financial Financial Financial With This Firm
Services Firm Services Services Email Services Phone

Name Contact

Charter School
Business r F _ 7
Management

Please upload as one combined file:

a. the independent auditor's report on financial statements and notes; and
b. reports on internal controls over financial reporting and compliance

https://nysed-cso-reports.fluidreview.com/media/assets/survey-uploads/ 4001/6 13906-
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https://nysed-cso-reports.fluidreview.com/media/assets/survey-uploads/84001/6813906-F7wWrRhhE3/GUG%20-%20Audit%20FY15-16.pdf

E7wWrRhhE3/GUG%20-%20Audit%20FY15-16.pdf
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FRUCHTER ROSEN & COMPANY, P.C.
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
156 WEST 56™ STREET
NEW YORK, NEW YORK 10019

TEL: (212)957-3600
Fax: (212)957-3696

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

TO THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF
GROWING UP GREEN CHARTER SCHOOL

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Growing Up Green Charter School (the
“School”) (a not-for-profit Corporation), which comprise the statement of financial position as of June
30, 2016, and the related statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the year then
ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation
and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the School’s
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the School’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.



Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the School as of June 30, 2016, and the changes in its net assets and its cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America.

Report on Summarized Comparative Information

We have previously audited the School’s 2015 financial statements, and our report dated August 20,
2015, expressed an unmodified opinion on those audited financial statements. In our opinion, the
summarized comparative information presented herein as of and for the year ended June 30, 2015, is
consistent, in all material respects, with the audited financial statements from which it has been
derived.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated September
27, 2016, on our consideration of the School’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests
of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and
other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on
intemal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the School’s internal

control over financial reporting and compliance. :
4Z£L</ /é@ﬁ/{ i @“&" ﬁ’ :

FRUCHTER ROSEN & COMPANY, P.C.
Certified Public Accountants

New York, New York
September 27, 2016



GROWING UP GREEN CHARTER SCHOOL
(A Not-For-Profit Corporation)
STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
JUNE 30, 2016
(with comparative financial information as of June 30, 2015)

2016 2015
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents b 1,703,279 $ 1,772,440
Grants and contracts receivable 223,092 104,531
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 134,233 118,819
Due from related party 330,701 -
Total current assets 2,391,305 1,995,790
Property and equipment, net of accumulated depreciation
and amortization of $868,777 and $642,506, respectively 1,393,081 1,240,072
Restricted cash 70,999 70,822
Security deposits 65,000 65,000
TOTAL ASSETS $ 3,920,385 $ 3,371,684
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 46,722 $ 38,889
Accrued payroll and payroll taxes 554,719 412,049
Refundable advances 11,869 37,077
Total current liabilities 613,310 488,015
Deferred rent 259,897 225,814
Total liabilities 873,207 713,829
Net assets:
Unrestricted 3,022,178 2,657,855
Temporarily restricted 25,000 -
Total net assets 3,047,178 2,657,855
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS $ 3,920,385 $ 3,371,684

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

-3-



GROWING UP GREEN CHARTER SCHOOL
(A Not-For-Profit Corporation)
STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016
(with summarized comparative financial information for the year ended June 30, 2015)

2016 2015
Temporarily
Unrestricted Restricted Total Total
Revenue and support:
State and local per pupil operating revenue $ 11,185,882 3 - $ 11,185,882 9,364,293
State and local per pupil facilities funding 362,249 - 362,249 249,188
Federal grants 292,925 - 202,925 196,843
State and city grants 51,303 - 51,303 124,292
Contributions and private grants 38,308 25,000 63,308 85,760
Donated services 2,700 - 2,700 -
Interest and other income 214,876 - 214,876 42,439
Total revenue and support 12,148,243 25,000 12,173,243 10,062,815
Expenses:
Program services
Regular education 8,182,673 - 8,182,673 6,485,503
Special education 2,549,787 - 2,549,787 1,983,130
Total program services 10,732,460 - 10,732,460 8,468,633
Supporting services
Management and general 083,804 - 083,804 1,055,481
Fundraising 67,656 - 67,656 78,311
Total expenses 11,783,920 - 11,783,920 9,602,425
Changes in net assets . 364,323 25,000 389,323 460,390
Net assets - beginning of year 2,657,855 - 2,657,855 2,197,465
Net assets - end of year 3,022,178 25,000 5 3,047,178 2,657,855

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

-4-
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GROWING UP GREEN CHARTER SCHOOL
(A Not-For-Profit Corporation)
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016
(with summarized comparative financial information for the year ended June 30, 2015)

2016 2015
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Changes in net assets $ 389,323 460,390
Adjustments to reconcile changes in net assets
to net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 299,112 239,390
Loss on disposition of property and equipment 5,183 -
Changes in certain assets and liabilities:
(Increase) in grants and contracts receivable (118,561) (61,882)
(Increase) in prepaid expenses and other current assets (15,414) (13,070)
(Increase) in due from related party (330,701) -
Increase (Decrease) in accounts payable and accrued expenses 7,833 (25,483)
Increase in accrued payroll and payroll taxes 142,670 71,767
(Decrease) Increase in refundable advances (25,208) 15,856
Increase in deferred rent 34,083 54,106
NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES 388,320 741,074
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchases of property and equipment (457,304) (826,635)
(Increase) in restricted cash (177 (177)
NET CASH (USED IN) INVESTING ACTIVITIES (457,481) (826,812)
NET (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (69,161) (85,738)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - BEGINNING OF YEAR 1,772,440 1,858,178
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - END OF YEAR $ 1,703,279 1,772,440

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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NOTE I -

GROWING UP GREEN CHARTER SCHOOL
(A Not-For-Profit Corporation)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2016
(with comparative financial information for June 30, 2015)

ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Nature of Organization

Growing Up Green Charter School (the “School”) is a New York State, not-for-profit
educational corporation that was incorporated on December 16, 2008 to operate a Charter
School pursuant to Article 56 of the Education Law of the State of New York. The School
was granted a provisional charter on December 16, 2008 valid for a term of five years and
renewable upon expiration by the Board of Regents of the University of the State of New
York. On December 17, 2013, the Board of Regents approved and issued the renewal to
the initial charter for a period of three and half years expiring June 30, 2017. The School’s
mission is to empower children to be conscious, contributing members of their community
through a rigorous curriculum and an engaging green culture. Graduates of the School will
be prepared to attend high performing schools where their interdisciplinary academic
foundations, knowledge of sustainability, and strong sense of self sets them apart as leaders
of the future. Classes commenced in Long Island City, New York, on September 9, 2009
and the School provided education to approximately 691 students in grades kindergarten
through seventh during the 2015-2016 academic year.

Food and Transportation Services

The New York City Department of Education provides free lunches and transportation
directly to a majority of the School’s students. Such costs are not included in these
financial statements. The School collects some money from families to defray the cost of
lunches for children not entitled to the free lunches.

Tax Status

The School is exempt from Federal income tax under Section 501(a) of the Internal
Revenue Code as a School described in Section 501(c)(3) and a similar provision under
New York State income tax laws. The School has also been classified as an entity that is
not a private foundation within the meaning of Section 509(a) and qualifies for deductible
contributions as provided in section 170(b)(1)(A)(ii). The School is subject to income
taxes only on net unrelated business income. The School did not have net unrelated
business income for the years ended June 30, 2016 and 2015.

The School’s accounting policy provides that a tax expense or benefit from an uncertain
tax position may be recognized when it is more likely than not that the position will be
sustained upon examination, including resolutions of any related appeals or litigation
processes, based on the technical merits. The School has no uncertain tax position
resulting in an accrual of tax expense or benefit.

IRS Forms 990 filed by the School are subject to examination by the Internal Revenue
Service up to three years from the extended due date of each return. Forms 990 filed by

the School are no longer subject to examination for the fiscal years ended June 30,
2012, and prior.



NOTE1 -

GROWING UP GREEN CHARTER SCHOOL
(A Not-For-Profit Corporation)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2016
(with comparative financial information for June 30, 2015)

ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Basis of Presentation

The School’s financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting
in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America. The financial statement presentation follows the requirements of the Financial
Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) in its Accounting Standards Codification
(“ASC™) No. 958-205 which provides guidance for the classification of net assets. The
amounts for each of the three classes of net assets are based on the existence or absence
of donor-imposed restrictions described as follows:

Unrestricted
Net assets of the School whose use has not been restricted by an outside donor

or by law. They are available for any use in carrying out the operations of the
School.

Temporarily Restricted

Net assets of the School whose use has been limited by donor-imposed
stipulations that either expire with the passage of time or can be fulfilled and
removed by actions of the School. When such stipulations end or are fulfilled,
such temporarily restricted net assets are reclassified to unrestricted net assets

and reported in the statements of activities, as net assets released from
restrictions.

Permanently Restricted

Net assets of the School whose use has been permanently limited by donor-
imposed restrictions. Such assets include contributions required to be invested
in perpetuity, the income from which is available to support charitable purposes
designated by the donors.

The School had no permanently restricted net assets at June 30, 2016 and 2015.

Revenue and Support

Contributions are recognized when the donor makes a promise to give to the School that is,
in substance, unconditional. Grants and other contributions of cash are reported as
temporarily restricted support if they are received with donor stipulations. Restricted
contributions and grants that are made to support the School’s current year activities are
recorded as unrestricted revenue. Contributions of assets other than cash are recorded at
their estimated fair value.



NOTE I -

GROWING UP GREEN CHARTER SCHOOL
(A Not-For-Profit Corporation)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2016
(with comparative financial information for June 30, 2015)

ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
{Continued)

Revenue and Support (continued)

Revenue from the state and local government resulting from the School’s charter status
and based on the number of students enrolled is recorded when services are performed in
accordance with the charter agreement. Federal and other state and local funds are
recorded when expenditures are incurred and billable to the government agencies.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and
the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting period.
Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents
The School considers all highly liquid financial instruments purchased with a maturity of
three months or less to be cash equivalents.

Concentration of Credit Risk

Financial instruments which potentially subject the School to concentrations of credit risk
are cash and cash equivalents. The School places its cash and cash equivalents on deposit
in what it believes to be highly credited financial institutions. Cash balances may exceed
the FDIC insured levels of $250,000 per institution at various times during the year. At
June 30, 2016, account balances exceeded insurance levels by approximately $1,524,000.
The School believes that there is little risk in any losses and has not experienced any losses
in such accounts. -

Property and Equipment

Purchased property and equipment are recorded at cost. Property and equipment acquired
with certain government funding are recorded as expenses pursuant to the terms of the
contract, in which ownership of such property and equipment is retained by the funding
source. Maintenance and repairs are expensed as incurred. No depreciation is recorded on
construction-in-progress until property and equipment is placed into service. Depreciation
and amortization is provided on the straight line method over the estimated useful lives as
follows:

Equipment 5 years
Furniture and fixture 7 years
Software 3 years
Website development 5 years
Leasehold improvements useful life or related lease



NOTE 1 -

NOTE 2 -

NOTE 3 -

GROWING UP GREEN CHARTER SCHOOL
(A Not-For-Profit Corporation)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2016
(with comparative financial information for June 30, 2015)

ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Restricted Cash
Under the provisions of its charter, the School established an escrow account to pay for
legal and audit expenses that would be associated with a dissolution should it occur.

Refundable Advances
The School records grant revenue as refundable advances until it is expended for. the
purpose of the grant, at which time it is recognized as revenue.

Comparative Financial Information
The accompanying statements of activities and statements of functional expenses are

presented with summarized comparative information. Such prior year information is not
presented by net asset class in the statements of activities or by functional category in the
statemnent of functional expenses. Accordingly, such information should be read in
conjunction with the School's 2015 financial statements from which the summarized
information was derived.

GRANTS AND CONTRACTS RECEIVABLE

Grants and contracts receivable consist of federal, state and city entitlements and grants.
The School expects to collect these receivables within one year.

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Property and equipment consist of the following at June 30,:

2016 2015

Equipment $ 784,106 § 750452
Furniture and fixture 476,540 449,663
Software 13,273 10,998
Website development 3,550 3,550
Leasehold improvements 984,389 598,037
Construction-in-progress - 69.878

2,261,858 1,882,578
Less: Accumulated depreciation and amortization 868,777 642,506

$1,393,081  $1.240.072

Depreciation and amortization expense was $299,112 and $239,390 for the years ended
June 30, 2016 and 2015, respectively.

-10-



NOTE 4 -

NOTE 5 -

GROWING UP GREEN CHARTER SCHOOL
(A Not-For-Profit Corporation)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2016
(with comparative financial information for June 30, 2015)

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Friends of Growing Up Green

The School is an affiliate of Friends of Growing Up Green (“Friends of GUG”), a New
York State not-for-profit corporation. Friends of GUG supports the School through
technical and financial assistance. For the years ended June 30, 2016 and 2015, Friends
of GUG made contributions to the School in the amount of $-0- and $66,700, respectively.
There were no other material transactions between Friends of GUG and the School.

Growing Up Green Charter School 11

The School is an affiliate of Growing Up Green Charter School 11 (“GUG II"), a New
York State not-for-profit corporation who both share common management and board
members. During the year ended June 30, 2016, the School paid $30,701 of operating
expenses on behalf of GUG II. In addition, the School entered into two interest free loan
agreements totaling $300,000 with GUG II. These loans are due by June 30, 2017 and will
be used for GUG 11 startup costs. Balance due from GUG II at June 30, 2016 and 2015
was $330,701 and $-0-, respectively.

COMMITMENTS

Facility Leases

The School is obligated under a non-cancelable operating lease for office and classroom
space at 39-27 28" Street, Long Island City, New York, expiring on August 31, 2019, with
a renewal option for an additional ten years. The lease provides for rent escalations and the
School is responsible for utilities, real estate taxes and other operating expenses.

On May 15, 2014, the School entered into an agreement to lease additional property at 36-
49 11" Street, Long Island City, New York for a period of 10 years. The lease provides for
rent escalations and the School is responsible for utilities, real estate taxes and other
operating expenses. This location became the home of Growing Up Green Middle School
starting with the 2014-2015 academic year.

The future minimum lease payments for both facility leases are as follows:

Year ending June 30, 2017 $ L,119,616
2018 1,151,238
2019 1,183,936
2020 546,608
2021 430,239
Thereafter 1,362,789

§_5.794.426
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NOTES -

NOTE6 -

NOTE 7 -

GROWING UP GREEN CHARTER SCHOOL
(A Not-For-Profit Corporation)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2016
(with comparative financial information for June 30, 2015)

COMMITMENTS (Continued)

Facility Leases (continued)

The School recognizes rent expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease. Rent
expense in excess of payments is recorded as deferred rent in the accompanying statements
of financial position. Rent expense for the years ended June 30, 2016 and 2015 amounted
to $1,160,393 and $1,078,185, respectively.

Eqguipment Leases

The School leases various copiers under non-cancelable operation leases expiring at
various dates through July 2020. The future minimum lease payments under the copier
leases are as follows:

Year ending June 30, 2017 $ 29,226
2018 29,226
2019 29,226
2020 29,226
2021 1.428

118332

Equipment leasing expense for the years ended June 30, 2016 and 2015 amounted to
$29,190 and $26,384, respectively.

CONTINGENCY

Certain grants and contracts may be subject to audit by the funding sources. Such audits
might result in disallowances of costs submitted for reimbursements. Management is of
the opinion that such cost disallowances, if any, will not have a material effect on the
accompanying financial statements. Accordingly, no amounts have been provided in the
accompanying financial statements for such potential claims.

DONATED SERVICES

Donated services are recognized as contributions in accordance with FASB ASC 958-605,
“Accounts for Contributions Received and Contributions Made,” if the services (a) create
or enhance non-financial assets or (b) require specialized skills, are performed by people
with those skills, and would otherwise be purchased by the School, and (c) are measurable.
The value of these services meets the criteria for recognition in the financial statements and
is recorded at fair value.

For the years ended June 30, 2016 and 2015, the School received network outsourcing
services valued at $2,700 and $-0-, respectively.



NOTE 8 -

NOTE 9 -

NOTE 10 -

NOTE 11 -

NOTE 12 -

GROWING UP GREEN CHARTER SCHOOL
(A Not-For-Profit Corporation)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2016
(with comparative financial information for June 30, 2015)

REVENUE CONCENTRATION

The School receives a substantial portion of its support and revenue from the New York
City Department of Education. If the charter school laws were modified, reducing or
eliminating these revenues, the School’s finances could be materially adversely affected.

FUNCTIONAL ALLOCATION OF EXPENSE

Directly identifiable expenses are charged to programs and supporting services.
Expenses related to more than one function are charged to programs and supporting
services on the basis of periodic time and expense studies. Management and general
expense includes those expenses that are not directly identifiable with any other specific
function, but provide for the overall support and direction of the School.

RETIREMENT PLAN

The School maintains a retirement plan qualified under Internal Revenue Code 403(b), for
the benefit of its eligible employees. Under the plan, the School has the option to match
employee contributions up to 5% of annual compensation. The amount charged for
matching contributions to this plan was $111,130 and $91,757 for the years ended June
30,2016 and 2015, respectively.

TEMPORARILY RESTRICTED NET ASSETS

Temporarily restricted net assets of $25,000 at June 30, 2016 are restricted for the use of
green-related projects.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

In preparing these financial statements, the School has evaluated events and transactions
for potential recognition or disclosure through September 27, 2016, the date the financial
statements were available to be issued.

-=13-



FRUCHTER ROSEN & COMPANY, P.C.
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
156 WEST 56™ STREET

NEW YORK, NEW YORK 10019

TEL: (212)957-3600
Fax: (212)957-3696

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING
AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

TO THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF
GROWING UP GREEN CHARTER SCHOOL

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of Growing Up Green
Charter School (the “School™) (a not-for-profit Corporation), which comprise the statement of financial
position as of June 30, 2016, and the related statements of activities, and cash flows for the year then ended,

and the related notes to the financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated September 27,
2016.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the School’s internal
control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the School’s internal control. Accordingly, we do
not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the School’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination
of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of
the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A
significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe
than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses
may exist that have not been identified.

-14-



TO THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF
GROWING UP GREEN CHARTER SCHOOL

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the School’s financial statements are free from
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The
results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported
under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal contrel and compliance
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the School’s internal
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the School’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly,
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

4 432;4‘»%(“

FRUCHTER ROSEN & COMPANY, P.C.
Certified Public Accountants

New York, New York
September 27, 2016
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FRUCHTER ROSEN & COMPANY, P.C.
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

156 WEST 56 STREET
NEW YORK, NEW YORK 10019

TEL: (212) 957-3600
Fax: (212) 957-3696

September 27, 2016

To the Board of Trustees and Management of
Growing Up Green Charter School

39-37 28" Street

Long Island City, NY 11101

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements of Growing Up Green Charter School (the
“School”) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2016, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted
in the United States of America, we considered the School’s internal control over financial reporting (internal
control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of
expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the School’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of
the School’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the School’s financial
statements will not be prevented, or detected and cotrected, on a timely basis.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph and was not
designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses. Given these
limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be
material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

This communication is intended solely for the information and use of management, Board of Trustees, federal,
state and local awarding agencies, The Department of Education of the City of New York, The State Education
Department of the State University of New York, and others within the School, and is not intended to be, and
should not be, used by anyone other than these specified parties.

We appreciate your cooperation and the assistance we received during the course of our audit.

A &vaﬁéw@f@

&

FRUCHTER ROSEN & COMPANY, P.C.
Certified Public Accountants

New York, New York

September 27, 2016



FRUCHTER ROSEN & COMPANY, P.C.
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
156 WEST 56™ STREET

NEW YORK, NEW YORK 10019

TeL: (212)957-3600
Fax: (212)957-3696

September 27, 2016

To the Audit Committee of the Board of Trustees of
Growing Up Green Charter School

39-37 28" Street

Long Island City, NY 11101

We have audited the financial statements of Growing Up Green Charter School (the “School™) for the year
ended June 30, 2016, and have issued our report thereon dated September 27, 2016. Professional standards
require that we provide you with the following information related to our audit.

Our Responsibilities under U.S. Generally Accepted Auditing Standards and Government Auditing Standards

As stated in our engagement letter dated March 10, 2016, our responsibility, as described by professional
standards, is to express an opinion about whether the financial statements prepared by management with your
oversight are fairly presented, in all material respects, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting
principles. Our audit of the financial statements does not relieve you or management of your responsibilities.

As part of our audit, we will consider the internal control of Growing Up Green Charter School. Such
considerations are solely for the purpose of determining our audit procedures and not to provide any assurance
concerning such internal control.

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement, we will perform tests of Growing Up Green Charter School’s compliance with certain provisions
of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants. However, the objective of our tests is not to provide an opinion on
compliance with such provisions.

Planned Scope and Timing of the Audit

We performed our audit according to the plan previously communicated to you prior to commencement of our
audit field work.

Auditor Independence

Fruchter Rosen & Company P.C. have complied with all relevant ethical requirements regarding independence.,

Significant Audit Findings
Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. The significant
accounting policies used by Growing Up Green Charter School are described in Note 1 to the financial
statements. No new accounting policies were adopted and the application of existing policies was not changed
during the year ended June 30, 2016. We noted no transactions entered into by the School during the year for
which there is a lack of authoritative guidance or consensus. All significant transactions have been recognized
in the financial statements in the proper period.



Growing Up Green Charter School
September 27, 2016
Page 2

Significant Accounting Estimates

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are based on
management’s knowledge and experience about past and current events and assumptions about future events.
Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance to the financial statements
and because of the possibility that future events affecting them may differ significantly from those expected.
The most sensitive estimates affecting the financial statements are as follows:

¢ Collectability of grants and contracts receivables
o Useful lives of fixed assets
» Allocation of costs for the statement of functional expenses

We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop the above estimates in determining that it was
reasonable in relation to the financial statement taken as a whole. The financial statement disclosures are
neutral, consistent, and clear.

Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit

We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and completing our audit.

Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements

Professional standards require us to accumulate all misstatements identified during the audit, other than those
that are clearly trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of management. In addition, we are
required to communicate with those charged with governance uncorrected misstatements and the effect that they
may have on the opinion in the auditors’ report, and request their correction. None of the misstatements
detected as a result of audit procedures and corrected by management were material, either individually or in the
aggregate, to the financial statements taken as a whole.

Disagreements with Management

For purposes of this letter, a disagreement with management is a financial accounting, reporting, or auditing
matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be significant to the financial statements or the
auditors’ report. We are pleased to report that no such disagreements arose during the course of our audit.

Management Representations

We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the management
representation letter dated September 27, 2016.

Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting
matters, similar to obtaining a *“second opinion” on certain situations. If a consultation involves application of
an accounting principle to the School’s financial statements or a determination of the type of auditors’ opinion
that may be expressed on those statements, our professional standards require the consulting accountant to
check with us to determine that the consultant has all the relevant facts. To our knowledge, there were no such
consultations with other accountants.



Growing Up Green Charter School
September 27, 2016
Page 3

Other Audit Findings or Issues

We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing
standards, with management each year prior to retention as the School’s auditors. However, these discussions
occurred in the normal course of our professional relationship and our responses were not a condition to our
retention.

Other Matters

This information is intended solely for the use of the Audit Committee, the Board of Trustees and management
of Growing Up Green Charter School and is not intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other than
these specified parties.

Very truly yours,

. Ja%wf‘f@?f /2

FRUCHTER ROSEN & COMPANY, P.C.
Certified Public Accountants



ﬁ Entry 6b Additional Financial Docs

Last updated: 10/06/2016

The additional items listed below should be uploaded if applicable. Please explain the reason(s) if
the items are not included. Examples might include: a written management letter was not issued;
the school did not expend federal funds in excess of the Single Audit Threshold of $750,000; the
corrective action plan will be submitted by the following date (should be no later than 30 days from
the submission of the report); etc.

Page 1

1. Management Letter

https://nysed-cso-reports.fluidreview.com/media/assets/survey-uploads/84010/6814014-
8mMIunnVv3/GUG.pdf

Explanation for not uploading the Management Letter.

(No response)

2. Form 990

(No response)

Explanation for not uploading the Form 990.

The school is still in the process of completing the form 990. It is not yet due, but will be shared
upon completion
3. Federal Single Audit

Note: A copy of the Federal Single Audit must be filed with the Federal Audit Clearinghouse. Please
refer to OMB Uniform Guidelines for the federal filing requirements.

(No response)
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https://nysed-cso-reports.fluidreview.com/media/assets/survey-uploads/84010/6814014-8mMIunnVv3/GUG.pdf

Explanation for not uploading the Federal Single Audit.

Since the school did not receive over $750,000 in federal funds, the school was exempt from the
single audit

4. CSP Agreed Upon Procedure Report

(No response)

Explanation for not uploading the procedure report.

Since the school did not receive CSP funding, the school did not have to complete the CSP AUP.

5. Evidence of Required Escrow Account

https://nysed-cso-reports.fluidreview.com/media/assets/survey-uploads/84010/6814014-
pN6HONalce/GUG%20-%20Bank%20Statement%208727%20-%20june%202016.pdf

Explanation for not uploading the Escrow evidence.

(No response)

6. Corrective Action Plan

A Corrective Action Plan for Audit Findings and Management Letter Recommendations, which
must include:

a. The person responsible
b. The date action was taken, or will be taken

c. Description of the action taken
d. Evidence of implementation (if available)

(No response)

Explanation for not uploading the Corrective Action Plan.

The school received a clean audit and there was no corrective action plan.
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FRUCHTER ROSEN & COMPANY, P.C.
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
156 WEST 56™ STREET
NEW YORK, NEW YORK 10019

TEL: (212) 957-3600
FAX: (212) 957-3696

September 27, 2016

To the Board of Trustees and Management of
Growing Up Green Charter School

39-37 28" Street

Long Island City, NY 11101

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements of Growing Up Green Charter School (the
“School”) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2016, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted
in the United States of America, we considered the School’s internal control over financial reporting (internal
control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of
expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the School’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of
the School’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the School’s financial
statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph and was not
designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses. Given these
limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be
material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

This communication is intended solely for the information and use of management, Board of Trustees, federal,
state and local awarding agencies, The Department of Education of the City of New York, The State Education
Department of the State University of New York, and others within the School, and is not intended to be, and
should not be, used by anyone other than these specified parties.

We appreciate your cooperation and the assistance we received during the course of our audit.

il for 4/7/’3'

[

FRUCHTER ROSEN & COMPANY,P.C
Certified Public Accountants

New York, New York
September 27, 2016



FRUCHTER ROSEN & COMPANY, P.C.
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
156 WEST 56™ STREET

NEW YORK, NEw YORK 10019

TEL: (212)957-3600
Fax: (212)957-3696

September 27, 2016

To the Audit Committee of the Board of Trustees of
Growing Up Green Charter School

39-37 28" Street

Long Island City, NY 11101

We have audited the financial statements of Growing Up Green Charter School (the “School™) for the year
ended June 30, 2016, and have issued our report thereon dated September 27, 2016. Professional standards
require that we provide you with the following information related to our audit.

Our Responsibilities under U.S. Generallv Accepted Auditing Standards and Government Auditing Standards

As stated in our engagement letter dated March 10, 2016, our responsibility, as described by professional
standards, is to express an opinion about whether the financial statements prepared by management with your
oversight are fairly presented, in all material respects, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting
principles. Our audit of the financial statements does not relieve you or management of your responsibilities.

As part of our audit, we will consider the internal control of Growing Up Green Charter School. Such
considerations are solely for the purpose of determining our audit procedures and not to provide any assurance
concerning such internal control.

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement, we will perform tests of Growing Up Green Charter School’s compliance with certain provisions
of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants. However, the objective of our tests is not to provide an opinion on
compliance with such provisions.

Planned Scope and Timing of the Audit

We performed our audit according to the plan previously communicated to you prior to commencement of our
audit field work.

Auditor Independence

Fruchter Rosen & Company P.C. have complied with all relevant ethical requirements regarding independence.

Significant Audit Findings

Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. The significant
accounting policies used by Growing Up Green Charter School are described in Note | to the financial
statements. No new accounting policies were adopted and the application of existing policies was not changed
during the year ended June 30, 2016. We noted no transactions entered into by the School during the year for
which there is a lack of authoritative guidance or consensus. All significant transactions have been recognized
in the financial statements in the proper period.



Growing Up Green Charter School
September 27, 2016
Page 2

Significant Accounting Estimates

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are based on
management’s knowledge and experience about past and current events and assumptions about future events,
Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance to the financial statements
and because of the possibility that future events affecting them may differ significantly from those expected.
The most sensitive estimates affecting the financial statements are as follows:

* Collectability of grants and contracts receivables
o Useful lives of fixed assets
e Allocation of costs for the statement of functional expenses

We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop the above estimates in determining that it was

reasonable in relation to the financial statement taken as a whole. The financial statement disclosures are
neutral, consistent, and clear.

Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit

We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and completing our audit.

Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements

Professional standards require us to accumulate all misstatements identified during the audit, other than those
that are clearly trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate leve! of management. In addition, we are
required to communicate with those charged with governance uncorrected misstatements and the effect that they
may have on the opinion in the auditors’ report, and request their correction. None of the misstatements
detected as a result of audit procedures and corrected by management were material, either individually or in the
aggregate, to the financial statements taken as a whole.

Disagreements with Management

For purposes of this letter, a disagreement with management is a financial accounting, reporting, or auditing
matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be significant to the financial statements or the
auditors’ report. We are pleased to report that no such disagreements arose during the course of our audit.

Management Representations

We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the management
representation letter dated September 27, 2016.

Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting
matters, similar to obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations. 1f a consultation involves application of
an accounting principle to the School’s financial statements or a determination of the type of auditors’ opinion
that may be expressed on those statements, our professional standards require the consulting accountant to
check with us to determine that the consultant has all the relevant facts. To our knowledge, there were no such
consultations with other accountants.



Growing Up Green Charter School
September 27, 2016
Page 3

Other Audit Findings or Issues

We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing
standards, with management each year prior to retention as the School’s auditors. However, these discussions
occurred in the normal course of our professional relationship and our responses were not a condition to our
retention.

Other Matters

This information is intended solely for the use of the Audit Committee, the Board of Trustees and management
of Growing Up Green Charter School and is not intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other than
these specified parties.

Very truly yours,

A cﬁﬁw%ﬁ' /2

FRUCHTER ROSEN & COMPANY, P.C.
Certified Public Accountants



Citibank CBO Services 587
P.O. Box 769018
San Antonio, Texas 78245

GROWING UP GREEN CHARTER SCHOOL
ESCROW ACCT
9-27 28TH_ST
LONG 1S CITY NY 11101

001/R1/04F000
000
CITIBANK, N. A.
Account

atement Period
Jun 1 -Jun 30, 2016
Relationship Manager
Citibusiness Service Center
(877) 528-0990

Page 1 of 2

Relationship Summary:

Checking

Savings $70,999.14

Checking Plus —————

Type of Charge Price/Unit Amount
Average Daily Collected Balance $70,970.04
Total Charges for Services $0.00
Net Service Charge $0.00

CitiBusiness IMMA

I Beginning Balance: $70,984.59

Ending Balance: $70,999.14
Date Description Credits Balance
06/30 INTEREST EARNED 14.55 70,999.14

Interest earned year to date $88.21

Your CitiBusiness IMMA Account Rates

For $0 $25,000 $50,000 $100,000
Balances to to to to
of: $24,999 $49,999 $99,999 $499,999

$5,000,000 $10,000,000
to
$9,999,999 and over

6/01 - 6/30 0.200% 0.250% 0.250% 0.250%

0.150% 0.150%



http:70,999.14
http:70,999.14
http:70,984.59

GROWING UP GREEN CHARTER SCHOOL Account m Page 2 of 2 CouRI0aFo00
(ESCROW ACCT) Statement Period: Jun 1 - Jun 30, 2016

IF YOU HAVE QUESTIONS ON: YOU CAN CALL: YOU CAN WRITE:
Insured Money Market 877-528-0990 CitiBusiness
(For Speech and Hearing 100 Citibank Drive

Impaired Customers Only

San Antonio, TX 78245-9966
TDD: 800-945-0258)

For change in address, call your account officer or visit your branch.

© 2016 Citigroup Inc. Citibank, N.A. Member FDIC.
Citibank with Arc Design and CitiBusiness are registered service marks of Citigroup Inc.



New York State Education Department

Request for Proposals to Establish Charter Schools Authorized by the
Board of Regents

2015-16 Budget & Cash Flow Template

General Instructions and Notes for New Application Budgets and Cash Flows Templates

1 Complete ALL SIX columns in BLUE

2 Enter information into the GRAY cells

Cells containing RED triangles in the upper right corner in columns B through G contain guidance on
3 that particular item

Funding by School District information for all NYS School district is located on the State Aid website
at https://stateaid.nysed.gov/charter/. Refer to this website for per-pupil tuition funding for all school
districts. Rows may be inserted in the worksheet to accomodate additional districts if necessary.

The Assumptions column should be completed for all revenue and expense items unless the item is
self-explanatory. Where applicable, please reference the page number or section in the application
narrative that indicates the assumption being made. For instance, student enroliment would

5 |reference the applicable page number in Section |, C of the application narrative.




GROWING UP GREEN CHARTER SCHOOL

Please Note: The student enroliment data is entered below in the Enroliment Section beginning in row 155. This will populate the data in row 10.
REGULAR SPECIAL MANAGEMENT &

EDUCATION EDUCATION OTHER FUNDRAISING GENERAL TOTAL
Total Revenue 12,083,238 1,597,173 - - - 13,680,411
Total Expenses 9,584,030 3,771,382 - - - 13,355,412

Net Income 2,499,209 (2,174,209) - - - 325,000

Actual Student Enroliment 688 929 -
Total Paid Student Enroliment 787
PROGRAM SERVICES SUPPORT SERVICES
REGULAR SPECIAL MANAGEMENT &
EDUCATION EDUCATION OTHER FUNDRAISING GENERAL
REVENUE
REVENUES FROM STATE SOURCES
Per Pupil Revenue CY Per Pupil Rate
District 30 12,561,422

School District 2 (Enter Name)
School District 3 (Enter Name)
School District 4 (Enter Name)
School District 5 (Enter Name)

11,039,249 1,522,173 12,561,422

Special Education Revenue

Grants
Stimulus =
Other 62,550 |[NYSTL, NYSSL and NYSLIB
Other State Revenue 374,929 |Facilities Funding
TOTAL REVENUE FROM STATE SOURCES 11,476,728 1,522,173 12,998,901

REVENUE FROM FEDERAL FUNDING
IDEA Special Needs
Title |
Title Funding - Other
School Food Service (Free Lunch)

75,000
116,000
10,000 | Title Il Funding

Grants
Charter School Program (CSP) Planning & Implementation -
Other 338,410 |$430 Increase per pupil in April 2017
Other Federal Revenue -
TOTAL REVENUE FROM FEDERAL SOURCES 464,410 539,410

LOCAL and OTHER REVENUE
Contributions and Donations, Fundraising
Erate Reimbursement
Interest Income, Earnings on Investments,
NYC-DYCD (Department of Youth and Community Developmt.)
Food Service (Income from meals)

46,000
15,500
600 |Bank Interest

Text Book -
Other Local Revenue 80,000 |Afterschool Club Fees
TOTAL REVENUE FROM LOCAL and OTHER SOURCES 142,100 142,100
TOTAL REVENUE 1,597,173 13,680,411
List exact titles and staff FTE"s ( Full time eqiuilivalent)
EXPENSES
ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF PERSONNEL COSTS No. of Positions

241,577 |Executive Director

487,500 | School Leaders, Assistant School Leader
1,097,782 |ED Time Coordinators

102,500 |Director of Finance

Executive Management
Instructional Management
Deans, Directors & Coordinators
CFO / Director of Finance
Operation / Business Manager
Administrative Staff

TOTAL ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF

632,257 |Operations Managers, Office Assistants, Program Coordinators, Parent Coordinator

2,561,616 2,561,616

INSTRUCTIONAL PERSONNEL COSTS
Teachers - Regular
Teachers - SPED
Substitute Teachers
Teaching Assistants

2,764,968
969,414




GROWING UP GREEN CHARTER SCHOOL

Please Note: The student enroliment data is entered below in the Enroliment Section beginning in row 155. This will populate the data in row 10.
REGULAR SPECIAL MANAGEMENT &

EDUCATION EDUCATION OTHER FUNDRAISING GENERAL TOTAL
Total Revenue 12,083,238 1,597,173 - - - 13,680,411
Total Expenses 9,584,030 3,771,382 - - - 13,355,412
Net Income 2,499,209 (2,174,209) E E E 325,000
Actual Student Enrollment 688 99 -

PROGRAM SERVICES SUPPORT SERVICES

REGULAR SPECIAL MANAGEMENT &
EDUCATION EDUCATION FUNDRAISING GENERAL

Specialty Teachers 1,100,468 |Art, Science, Music, Theather, Gym, Language Teachers
Aides
Therapists & Counselors
Other

TOTAL INSTRUCTIONAL

449,175 | Dean of Students, School Counselors

1,549,643 3,734,382 5,284,025

NON-INSTRUCTIONAL PERSONNEL COSTS
Nurse
Librarian
Custodian
Security
Other
TOTAL NON-INSTRUCTIONAL

99,992

SUBTOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICE COSTS 115 4,211,251 3,734,382 7,945,633

PAYROLL TAXES AND BENEFITS
Payroll Taxes
Fringe / Employee Benefits

658,637
1,112,518

Retirement / Pension 162,882
TOTAL PAYROLL TAXES AND BENEFITS 1,934,037 1,934,037
TOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICE COSTS 6,145,288 3,734,382 9,879,670
CONTRACTED SERVICES

Accounting / Audit 24,000

Legal 22,000

Management Company Fee

35,000
Nurse Services =
Food Service / School Lunch
Payroll Services
Special Ed Services
Titlement Services (i.e. Title I)
Other Purchased / Professional / Consulting

Custodial, Substitute Teachers, Grant Writing, E-rate

TOTAL CONTRACTED SERVICES 419,180

SCHOOL OPERATIONS
Board Expenses 3,000
Classroom / Teaching Supplies & Materials 161,500
Special Ed Supplies & Materials 37,000
Textbooks / Workbooks 54,000
Supplies & Materials other 42,000
Equipment / Furniture 172,550
Telephone 22,800
Technology 95,200
Student Testing & Assessment 26,000
Field Trips 120,000
Transportation (student) =
Student Services - other 10,000
Office Expense 147,685
Staff Development 80,000
Staff Recruitment 15,000
Student Recruitment / Marketing 20,000
School Meals / Lunch 20,000

Travel (Staff)
Fundraising




GROWING UP GREEN CHARTER SCHOOL

Please Note: The student enroliment data is entered below in the Enroliment Section beginning in row 155. This will populate the data in row 10.
SRR eiehe,  omeR  ruwomsws MMSEENTS  rora
Total Revenue 12,083,238 1,597,173 - - - 13,680,411
Total Expenses 9,584,030 3,771,382 - - - 13,355,412
Net Income 2,499,209 (2,174,209) - - - 325,000
Actual Student Enroliment 688 [ 99 -
Total Paid Student Enroliment 787

PROGRAM SERVICES SUPPORT SERVICES

REGULAR SPECIAL MANAGEMENT &
EDUCATION EDUCATION OTHER FUNDRAISING GENERAL

Other -
TOTAL SCHOOL OPERATIONS 989,735 1,026,735

FACILITY OPERATION & MAINTENANCE

Insurance 75,500
Janitorial 27,000
Building and Land Rent / Lease 1,133,027
Repairs & Maintenance 70,000
Equipment / Furniture -
Security 118,000
Utilities 181,300
TOTAL FACILITY OPERATION & MAINTENANCE 1,604,827 1,604,827
DEPRECIATION & AMORTIZATION 425,000
DISSOLUTION ESCROW & RESERVES / CONTIGENCY -
TOTAL EXPENSES 9,584,030 3,771,382 13,355,412
NET INCOME

REGULAR SPECIAL TOTAL

ENROLLMENT - *School Districts Are Linked To Above Entries* EDUCATION EDUCATION ENROLLED

District 30

School District 2 (Enter Name)

School District 3 (Enter Name)

School District 4 (Enter Name)

School District 5 (Enter Name)
TOTAL ENROLLMENT

REVENUE PER PUPIL

EXPENSES PER PUPIL




Disclosure of Financial Interest by a Current or Proposed Charter School
Education Corporation Trustee

Trustee Name:
Jeffrey J. Muellar

Mame of Charter School Education Corporation (lor an unmerged school, this is
the Charter School Nama):
Growing Up Green Charter School

1. List all positions held on the education eorporation board (a.g., presidenl, treasurer,
parani reprasantaliva). Presidant

2. Is the trustee an emploves of any school operated by the Education Corporation?
Yoz X No

If ¥es, lor sach school, please pravide a description of the positionis) vou hold, your
responsibiliies, yvour salary and your star data.

3. s the truslee an amployves ar ageni ol the managemen! company ar institulional
parirer of the charler school(s) governed by the Educalion Corporalion?

Yes X Mo

If ¥es, for sach school, please provide a description of the positionis) you hold, your
responsibilities, your salary and your slarl data.

4. ldentily sach inlarestilransaction {and provide the requested inlarmalicn) thal you ar
any of your immeadiate family mambars ar any parsons who live with you in your house
have held or engaged in with the charer school(s) govarnad by the Education
Corparation during the time you have sanved an the board, and in the six-month period
prior Lo such sarvica. If thare has baen no such linansial interest or lransaction, wrile
Mone. Pleasa note that if vou answered Yes o Questions 2-4 abova, you nead nol
disclose again your emplaymant stalus, salary, ele.

Date(s) Mature of Financial | Steps taken to avoid Mame of parson
InterestTransaction | a conflict of interest, helding interest or
(e.g., did not vote, angaging in
did not participate in transaction and
discussion) relationship ta
yvourself




NONE

5. ldentily sach mdividual, buesingss, corporalion, union associalion, lirm, parinership,
commillee propriatorship, Iranchise halding company, joint slock company, businass
ar real eslale trusl, non-profil organizatkan, or other organization or group ol paople
doing business with tha school{s) governed by the Education Corporation and in which
such enlity, during the tme of your tenura as a trusles, you andlor your immeadiate
family mambar(s) or parson(s) living in your housa had a linancial intarast or othar
relatonship. I you ara a mamber, direclor, olficer or employes ol an organizalion
farmally partnarad with the schoolis) thal isfare doing business with the school(s)
through a managemant or sarvices agraement, pleasa identify anly the name of the
arganization, your position in the organizaton, and the relaionship batweaen such
arganizalion and the school{s). I there was no linancial mlarast, wrila Mona.

 Organization
conducting

business with
the school(s)

Mature of
business
conductad

NONE

Approximate
value of the
business
conducted

sy O Waedlin

Signature

Name of Trustee and/or
immediate family member
of household holding an
interest in the organization
conducting business with
the school(s) and the
nature of the interast

Julby 5, 2016
Diate

Steps Taken
o Avoid
Conflict of
Interast

Plagse note Fal s dosuwment & coimsidensd 4 pulhe fecond and as such, gy be made avaiabhes i
members of fe pubic Won redgques undar the Frésdom of nsrmahion Law., Pevgona confact informanion
Drolios Delow Wl De fe ok ol

Business Telej
Business Addr
E-mail Addres:
Home Talepho|

Home Addrass




Disclosure of Financial Interest by a Current or Proposed Charter School

Education Corporation Trustee

Trustee Name:
Matthew Greenberg

—

Name of Charter School Education Corporation (for an unmerged school, this is

the Charter School Name):
Growing Up Green Charter School

1. List all positions held on the education corporation board (e.g., president, ireasurer,

parent represartative). " /I "d

Is the lrustee an employee of any schocl operated by the Education Corporation?
Yes __~No

If Yes, for each school, please provide a description of the position{s) you hold, your
responsibilities, your salary and your start date,

. Is the trusies an employee or agent of the management company or institutional
parner of the ghartar school({s) governed by the Education Corporation?

Yes No

If Yes, for each school, please provide a description of the position{s) you held, your
responsibilities, your salary and your start date.

Identify each interestfiransaction {and provide the requested information) that you or
any of your immediate family members or any persons who live with you in your house
have held or engaged in with the charter schools) governed by the Education
Corparation during the time you have served on the board, and in the six-month pariod
prior to such servica. I there has bean no such financial interest or transaction, write
None. Pleasa ncle that if you answared Yes to Questions 2-4 above, you need nol
disclose again your employment slalus, salary, stc.

Date(s) Nature of Financial | Steps taken to avoid Name of perscn
InterestTransaction | a conflict of interest, holding interest or
{e.g., did not volte, engaqing in
N did not participate in transaction and
oNT_ discussion) relationship to
yourself




Nome [f apy lecable '.-II' not leove "E'

ONE. NONE | Noae

3 | &5 g ; '} | (7 11 R
TERSE Wil 5 Sfpac fLFrad

N 00

5. ldeniify each individual, business, corporation, union association, firm, partnership,
commitiea proprietorship, franchise holding company, joint stock company, business
or real estate trust, non-profit organization, or other organization or group of people
doing business wilh the school{s) govemned by the Education Corporation and in which
such entity, during the time of your tenure as a ftrustee, you and/or your immediate
family mamber(s) or person(s) living in your house had a financial inferest or other
relationship. If you are a member, direclor, officer or employee of an organization
formally partnered with the school(s) thal isfare doing business with thae school(s)
through & managemen! or services agreemenl, please identify only the name of the
organization, your position in the organization, and the relationship between such
organization and the school(s). If ther2 was no financial interest, write None.

ﬂr;iaﬁfiatlnn [ Nature of | Appru:u:mata | Name of Trustee andior [
conducting business | value of the | immediate family member i Takin ‘
business with conducted business of household holding an tuln:.ﬁwuid
the school(s) conducted | Interest in the organization Conflict of
conducting business with Sy
the school(s) and the
| nature of the interest |
a5y f Vophe" if opplicable. | vt leagve this space blan
|
LJane.  [Uowe , Dot
ln,_;lu s L f erulllt__ . fuﬂnf:;f JCIS_
o P e —_— Ay A =
.r":f ..-'. 'J‘__.-:-..{:J‘_: S .I_. o o | ||'I q Iflf?l'l' s - I:"ﬂ' J,a"r){"_f
;.-"I"- LELE L "",?’f . WY ! : LJC_.)I L/
Signature =L Date

Please nole thal s document is cansidered a public record and as such, may be made available fo
mambers of the public upon request under ihe Freadiam of informalion Law. Parsonal confac irformation

providad below wil ba m)

Business Telephor
Business Address;
E-mail Address: |
Home Telephone: |

Home Address:
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Disclosure of Financial Interest by a Gurrent or Proposed Charter School
Education Corporation Trustee

Trustee Name:; ’_1]_2 E { C/{ C L‘ M‘j C__

Mame of Charter School Education Corporation [for an unmerged school, this is
the Charter School Nama);

Oml_#fn 5 L.up Goreg an Ceﬁ'\.{.ﬁ-"":}—@_;" § g{ﬁg;} E

. List all positions held on the education corporation board (e.q., president, treasurer,

parent representalive). v, fder — Teal vt

, s the tmstayn employee of any schogl operated by the Education Corparation?
Mo

Yes

If Yes, for each school, please provide a desceription of the position{s) you hoeld, your
responsibiliies, your salary and yvour slart date.

Is the trusiee an employese or agent of the management company or Institutional
partner of the charter school(s) governed by the Education Corporation?

Yes Mo

If Yes, for each school, please provide a description of the position(s) you hold, your
responskbilities, your salary and your start date,

Idantify aach interestitransaction (and provide the requested informaltion) thal you or
any of your immediate family membars or any persons who lve with you In your
house have held or engaged in with the charer school(s) governed by the Education

Corparation during the fime you have served on the board, and in the six-maonth

perod prior to such service. If there has been no such financial interest or

transaction, write Mone. Flease note that if you answered Yes to Questions 2-4
sbove, you need not disclose again your employment status, salary, efc.

Date(s) Nature of Financial | Steps taken to avoid Name of person
interestTransaction = a conflict of interest, holding interest or

(e.g., did not vote, engaging in

: ) did not participate in transaction and
/’V(,)fb" é;_ discussion) relationship to
= yourself

1
|



Piease write "Nona" if ap_l:liu.’:alnle. Do not leave this space blank

| e |

5. Identify each indhidual, business, corporation, union association, firm, parnership,
committee proprietorship, franchise holding company, joint stock company, business
or real estate trust, non-profit organization, or other organization or group of people
doing business with the school(s) governed by the Education Conporation and in
which such entity, during the time of your tenure as a trustee, you andlor your
immediale family member(s) or person(s) living In your house had a financkal interest
or other relationship. If you are a member, director, officer or employee of an
organization formally parinered with the school{s) that Is/are doing businass with the
school{s) through & management or services agreement, please identify only the
name of the organization, your position in the oarganization, and the ralationship
between such organization and the school{s). If there was no financial interest, write

None.
Organization | Mature of | Approximate Name of Trustee andlor
conducting business value of the immediate family member Steps Taken
business with | conducted business of household holding an tuF-'Avuld
the school(s) conducted | interest in the ocrganization Conflict of
conducting business with | irterwst
the school{s) and the
| nature of the interest

Pleasg write“Nope* if applicable Do nfotl leave'this apace blank
! {

g

—_ ﬁ s

Date

Fleasahole Thelhis @ocumentis @onsidered Biou b hecor Bnd @sEuch, lnay beimadeAvailableto
membersiithe publicop on feguest Dnderiibe Fresdom Bf formation Law. (Personal onbackinfarmation | !
i e ore il e iy

Business Telepho)|
Business Address
E-mail Address:
Home Telephone:

Home Address:



Disclosure of Financial Interest by a Current or Proposed Charter School
Education Corporation Trustee

Trustee Name:
Preethi Krishnamurthy

Name of Charter School Education Corporation (for an unmerged school, this is
the Charter School Name):
Growing Up Green Charter School

1. List all positions held on the education corporation board (e.g., president, treasurer,
parent representative). Parent representative

2. Is the trustee an employes of any school operated by the Education Corporation?
Yes X No

If Yes, for each school, please provide a description of the position(s) you hold, your
responsibiliies, your salary and your stari date.

3. Is the trustee an employee or agent of the management company or insfitufional
partner of the charter school(s) governed by the Education Corporation?

Yes X No

If Yes, for each school, please provide a description of the position(s) you hold, your
responsibiliies, your salary and your start date.

4, |deniify each interestitransaction (and provide the requested information) that you or
any of your immediate family members or any persons who live with you in your
house have held or engaged in with the charter school(s) governed by the Education
Corporation during the time you have served on the board, and in the six-month
period prior fo such service. If there has been no such financial interest or
transaction, write None. Please note that if you answered Yes fo Quesifions 2-4
abowve, you need not disclose again yvour employment status, salary, etc.

Date{s)

Nature of Financial
InterestTransaction

Steps taken to avoid
a conflict of
interest, (e.g., did
not vote, did not

Mame of person
holding interest or
engaging in
transaction and




participate in

relationship to

discussion) yourself
None MNone MNone Mone
3. |dentify each individual, business, corporation, union association, firm, partnership,

committee proprietorship, franchise holding company, joint stock company, business
or real estate trust, non-profit organization, or other crganization or group of people
doing business with the school(s) governed by the Education Corporation and in
which suwch enfity, during the time of your tenure as a frustee, you and/or your
immediate family member{s) or person{s) living in your house had a financial interest
or other relafionship. If you are a member, direclor, officer or employee of an
organization formally partnered with the school(s) that is/are doing business with the
school(s) through a management or services agreement, please identify only the
name of the organization, your position in the crganization, and the relationship
between such organization and the school(s). If there was no financial interest, write
Mone.

— = — e

Drgam:attan  Nature of Appmmmate Name of Trustee andlor
conducting business value of the immediate family member
business with conducted business of household holding an Steps Taken
the school(s) conducted interest in the to Avoid
organization conducting Conflict of
business with the Interest
school(s) and the nature
of the interest
None Mone Mone Mone Mone
s/Preethi Krishnamurthy July 17, 2016

Signature

Date

Flease nate that this document iz considsred a public record and a8 such, may be made svaiabis to

members of the public upon request undsr the Freedom -:.FJnfa-""'.a '1|:|n Law P&'Ecra.' conlact information
provided belwwill be-regactada " if aoplicablz, Do not lem ir hirnl




Disclosure of Financial Interest by a Current or Proposed Charter School
Education Corporation Trustee

Trustee Name; %ﬂ% ade %J'HJ"FLJ EAS?[‘E';"’}

Name of Charter School Education Corporation {for an unmerged school, this is
the Charter School Name):

érvw;}aj Ofp (‘;r‘-ﬂ—m

1. List all positions held on the education corporation board {e.g., president, treasurer,
arent representative).
P } Mem 64;"

2. |s the trustee an employee of any school operated by the Education Corporation?
Yes X No

If Yes, for each school, please provide a description of the position(s) you hald, your
responsibilities, your salary and your start date.

3. Is the trustee an employee or agent of the management company or institutional
pariner of the charter schoclis) governed by the Education Corporation?

Yes ﬁ_ﬂu
If Yes, for each school, please provide a description of the position(s) you hold, your
respansibilities, your salary and your start date.

4. |dentify each interestitransaction (and provide the requested information) that you or
any of your immediate family members or any persons who live with you in your
house have held or engaged in with the charter school(s) govemed by the Education
Corporation during the time you have served on the board, and in the six-month
periocd prior to such service If there has been no such financial interest or
transaction, write None. Please note that if you answered Yes to Questions 2-4
above, you nead not disclose again your employment status, salary, ete

Date(s) Nature of Financial | Steps taken to avoid Name of person
InterestiTransaction | a conflict of interest, holding interast or
(e.g., did not vote, engaging in
did not participate in transaction and
discussion) relationship to

yourself




Flease writp "None” if applicaple. Do not leave tRis space blank.
vl orne FYrte Adra | o ArE

5. ldentify each individual, business, corporation, unlon association, firm, partnership,
committee proprietorship, franchise holding company, jeint stock company, business
or real estale trust, non-profit organization, or other arganization or group of people
doing business with the school{s) govemned by the Education Corporation and in
which such entity, during the time of your tenure as a trustee, you andfor your
immediate family member(s) or persan(s) living in your house had a financial interest
or other relationship. If you are @ member, director, officer or employea of an
arganization formally parinered with the school(s) that isfare doing business with the
school(s) through a management or services agreement, please identify only the
name of the organization, your pesition in the organization, and the relationship
between such organization and the school{s). If there was no financial interest, write

None.,
| Organization Nature of | Approximate | Name of Trustee andlor
conducting business value of the | immediate family mamber Steps Taken
business with | conducted business of household holding an tophuuld
the school(s) conducted interest in the erganization
k , Conflict of
conducting business with Interest
the school(s) and the
N S | natureoftheinterest | == @00
Pleas¢ write “None” if applicdble. Do not leave this sppace Blank.
i .
ool = 1 S

Signature 4 Date

Plogge hole that this documend is considerad a peibdic rpcord and as such, may be made availabie o
members of the public upon request under the Fresdom of Information Law, Perssnal contact information
proviced below will be redacted.

Business Telepl
Business Addre
E-mail Address:
Home Telephon

Home Address:
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5. Identi - i :
mm::?;l::;t'_{;”f“;'d'{a'_- business, corporation, union assaciation, firm, partnership,
& et {J njetcrhh|p. fra:iﬂchrse hn::h:_nng company, joint stock company, business
doing busingss iiih“?h”'proﬁe organization, or other organization or group of people
which A e school{sj gaverned by the Education Corporation and in
immediate famil };He Uﬂng et ar your fenure as a frustee, you and/or your
o cihac relatioi o mber(s) or person(s) living in your house had a financial interest
Al Snip. If you are a member. director, officer or employee of an
W Gm[-s} thrﬂ?.] r'r;‘ally partnered with the schaol(s) that is/are doing business with the
Fadie Lt DEI aa management or services agreement, please identify only the
B i rganizalion, your position in the organization, and the relationship

N erganization and the school(s). If there was no financial interast, write

None,
?:Lg:é:ﬁ;‘m" Nature of | Approximate | Name of Trustee andjor | =
e ”*_&:h business value of the | immediate family member
i '-"Ill'l conducted business of household holding an Steps Taken
ool(s) conducted interest in the organization to A\:roid
conducting business with | Conflict of
the school(s) and the Interest
nature of the interest
[ IIII |'.J-.L | .\-I" - '
|\\ II |I I| Il | -A_'_'_,_,-""F
W \\___(,.r I', I\J_’__.-'"-
| | |
-‘ - ek - .-""f..--' | | T
/_-"'i 2 r’/‘ )’:{ ] ”?li'
_ . I YL
Signature 4 Date e

Flease nate that this document is considered a public record and as such. me

? 5 = UCH, may ba m ;
members of the public upon requast under the Freedam of Information Law I—‘ir&anaa.rﬂ;ﬂr:;?-m? fo
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Business Telephone
Business Address: |

E-mail Address: __

Home Telephone:

Home Address: _
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Disclosure of Financial Interest by a Current or Proposed Charter School
Education Corporafion Trustee

Trustee Name:

Koke Hooken

Name of Charter School Education Corporation (for an unmerged school, this is
the Charter School Name):

Gy Uo buens Uninibeg She|

1. List all positions held on the education corporation board (e.g., president, freasurer,
parent raprasantative).

at

2, Is the trustee an employee of any school operated by the Education Corporation?
Yes ¥ Mo

If Yes, for each school, please provide a description of the position(s) you hold, your
responsibilities, your salary and your slarl date,

3. Is the truslee an employee or agent of the management company or institutional
partner of ?a charler school{s) govemned by the Education Corporation?

— Yes No
If Yes, for each school, please provide a description of the position(s) you hold, your
responsibilities, your salary and your start date.

4. Identify each interestitransaction (and provide the requested information) that you or
any of your immediate family members or any persons who live with you in your house
have held or engaged in with the charter school(s) governed by the Education
Corporation during the lime you have served on the board, and in the six-month period
prior to such service. Il there has been no such financial interest ar transaction, write
None. Pleass note that If you answered Yes to Questions 2-4 above, you need not
discloze again your employment status, salary, ete,

Date(s) | Mature of Financial | Steps taken to avoid Name of person
InterestiTransaction | a conflict of interest, holding interest or
| le.g., did not vote, engaging in
did not participate in transaction and
\ discussion) relationship to

yourself




s |
Please writg "None” if applicaple. Do not leave thHis space blank.
Mone Mone MNone . Mone

5. ldentify each individual, business, corporation, union association, firm, partnership,
commitiee proprietorship, franchise holding company, joint stock company, business
or real estate trusl, non-profit organization, or other organization or group of peaple
doing business with the school{s) governed by the Education Corporation and in which
such enlity, during the lime of your tenure as a trustee, you andfor your Immediate
family membar(s) or parson(s) living in your house had a financial interest or other
relationship. If you are a member, director, officer or employee of an organization
formally partnered with the school(s} that Isfare doing business with the school(s)
through a management or services agreemant, please identify anly the name of the
organization, your position in the organization, and the relationship between such
arganization and the school{s). If there was no financial interest, write None.

Organizatidﬁ Wature of | Appmiimata Name of Trustee andlor T

conducting business value of the | immediate family member Steps Taken
business with | conducted business of household helding an mpA ah:l
tha school(s) conducted | interest in the arganization iy
% Conflict of
conducting business with Inforest

the school{s) and the
nature of the interest

Pleasé write "Nomne” if applicdble. Do not leave this space blank.

Maone | MNone None Mone MNone
: = o i
I |
(™ J - W2\
[TV N2\ b
Signature Dale

Flaase nole thal this document iz considerad a public recard and as swuch, may be mada available to
membars of the public upon reques! under the Freedom of Informadion Law, Personal comlact infarmation
prowtdled bafow will aoasis

Business Tele)
Business Adds
E-mail Addres:
Home Telepho

Home Address



Disclosure of Financial Interest by a Current or Proposed Charter School

Education Corporation Trustee

Trustee Name:

[:."_'u S _Dm.n £L Ve

Name of Charter School Education Corporation (for an unmerged school, this is
the Charter School Name):

é-ﬁu.ug I (ohse Ceetnren gc.‘fﬁa.‘__

1

2,

List all positicns held on the education corporation board (e.g., president, treasurer,

parent representative). - —
G E g

Is the trustee an employee of any school operated by the Education Corporation?
Yes _/~ No

If Yes, for each school, please provide a description of the position(s) you hold, your
responsiblilities, your salary and your start date.

|s the trustee an employee or agent of the management company o institutional
partner of the charter school(s) governed by the Education Corporation?

'I'E'H-'H;Hn

It Yes, for each school, please provide a description of the position(s) you hold, your
responsibilities, your salary and your start date.

Identify each interest/transaction (and provide the requested information) that you or
any of your immediate family members or any persons who live with you in your
house have held or engaged in with the charler school(s) govemnad by the Education
Corporation during the time you have served on the board, and in the six-month
period prior to such service. If there has been no such financial interest or
transaction, write None. Please note that if vou answered Yes to Questions 2-4
above, you need not disclose again your employment status, salary, elc.

Date(s)

Nature of Financial
Interest/Transaction

Steps taken to avoid
a conflict of interest,
{e.g., did not vote,
did not participate in

discussion)

Mame of person
haolding interest or
engaging in
transaction and
relationship to
yourself




[ BI-TELo

3. ldentify each individual, business, corporation, union association, firm, partnership,
commitiee propristorship, franchise holding company, joint stock company, business
or real estate trust, non-profit organization, or other organization or group of paople
doing business with the school(s) governed by the Education Corporation and in
which such entity, during the time of your tenure as a trustes, you andfor your
immediate family member(s) or parson(s) living in your housa had a financial interest
or other relationship. If you are a member, director, officer or employee of an
arganization farmally parinered with the school{s) that is/are doing business with the
school(s) through a management or services agreement, please identify only the
name of the organization, your position in the organization, and the relationship
between such organization and the school{s). If there was no financial interest, write

MNone
Organization MNature of | Approximate Mame of Trustee andfor
conducting business value of the immediate family membar Stens Taken
business with conducted business of household holding an tﬂp.ﬁ.wid
the school(s) conducted | interest in the organization Conflict of
conducting business with Interest
the school(s) and the ezl
nature of the interest
| Ik\‘ :.l..‘:-IEL
|
- o i _
Signature Daté

Fleass note that this documen! is considarad 2 pubiic recard and as such, mey be made svalable (o
mambars of the public upen reqguest under the Fresdom of Information Law. Personal confacl informalion
orovided bafow will be rodacted

Business Telaph
Business Addres
E-mail Address: |
Home Telephone

Home Address:




Entry 9 BOT Table

25 |

Page 1

1. Current Board Member Information

Trustee Email Position on Committee Voting Area of Number of
Name Address the Board Affiliations  Member? Expertise, Terms
(Y/N) and/or Served and
Additional Length of
Role at Each
School (Include
(parent, election
staff date and
member, term
etc.) expiration)
Finance
Jeffrey Chair/Boar Committee Yes
Mueller d President , Executive
Committee
Vice Finance
Kyla . Chair/Vice Commlt’Fee Yes
Kupferstein . , Executive
President .
Committee
Finance
Reid Chase Treasurer Commlt’Fee Yes
, Executive
Committee
Katek Trustee/Me  Executive Y
Hooker mber Committee €5
Finance
Matthew Trustee/Me  Committee
) Yes
Greenberg mber , Executive
Committee
thhryn . Trustee/Me  Executive
Klingenstei . Yes
n mber Committee
Finance
Kurt Secretar Committee Yes
Shuman y , Executive

1of3



Committee

Preethi
8 Krishmamu
rthy

Parent
Representa
tive

not
applicable

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19

20

2. Total Number of Members on June 30, 2015

3. Total Number of Members Joining the Board 2015-16 School Year

4. Total Number of Members Departing the Board during the 2015-16 School Year

5. Number of Voting Members 2015-16, as set by the by-laws, resolution or
minutes

20f3



6. Number of Board Meetings Conducted in the 2015-16 School Year

7. Number of Board Meetings Scheduled for the 2016-17 School Year

Thank you.

30f3



Notes for the Board Meeting on September 29, 2015

In attendance:

Brian Martin

Brittany Tuber

Ceilia O’Donnel

Erin Acosta

Gina Palma — via phone

Jeff Mueller

Jennifer Pearsall

Kate Hooker

Kurk Shuman — via phone
Kyla Kupferstein — via phone
Massomeh Muhammad
Matthew Greenberg

Mollie Fox

Reid Chase

Roseanne Baker

Jeff Mueller called the meeting to order.

1. Review of the Financial Statements - Gina Palma

Gina walked through the financial summary. At the moment we are looking to be on budget. The
only known overage is end of severance. This is was supposed to come in last year but did not
arrive till this year. We are under enrollment but have a higher Special Education number. She
continued discussing compensation, benefits, administrative, professional services, professional
development, marketing and recruitment and all remaining categories. In the end, we are over
budget but are still looking at having a net income of $320,000. This will significantly go up
once we have our enrollment numbers. Questions came up about copying overages, how much
we are spending on copying and our contract with the copying service. There was discussion
with ideas on how to lessen this cost.

2. Discussion & Approval of Audited Financials - Jeff Mueller

Jeff discussed the audited financials. This was reviewed by an outside accountant. Everything
looks healthy and good. No internal weaknesses, in terms of controls, was found. Discussion on
compression numbers, financial buffers and ensuring a healthy bank account came up. Mathew
responded that all the buildouts are complete ensuring future revenue will remain true revenue.
Historical context on pupil freeze or less income was brought up. Jeff called for motion to
approve. Kurk motioned and Kate second.

3. Lower School Academic Leader Share Out

This was the first full week of school. Brittany shared that the first unites are set for the first six
weeks and are well underway with a beginning focus on routines. There are only one new pair of
teachers. Every other teacher, besides associates, are returning and able to pick up where they
left off. The Special Education number is 29 with one classroom being at 30. The 1stgrade ICT
classroom is right at the 60/40 mark. Learning specialists are pushing in on a daily basis. Brittany
thanked Massomeh for having 45 iPads with apps to help in math and literacy. These will be



used on a daily basis for centers. She said field trips are beginning with K/1 attending Brooklyn
Grange, a rooftop farm, which has become a tradition. She mentioned a residency beginning with
the 1stgrade classes. The cost is split between Ed time and field trip budget thanks to the PTO. 1st
grade is piloting this program.

4. Director of Operation Share Out

Massomeh shared that she manages 17 people and that we were able to filter security guards with
Securitas to have two guards per school that we like. She discussed how the Operation Manager
was over everything and this year the role was broke up. We now have a tech person on site,
someone dedicated to clubs, a parent coordinator and a campus sustainability manager.
Massomeh talked about the MS buildout, specifically the second state-of-the-art science lab for
Tth grade, an additional staircase and a renovated kitchen that now allows for hot meals.

5. Assessment Team provides 2014-2015 state exam data breakdown

Brian, Roseanne and Mollie went through the state exam data breakdown. Rosanne found it
interested that the 4 grade girls outperformed the males in math and the males outperformed the
females in ELA. Mollie emphasized growth and being on the right track. In all grades we have
growth in in our ELA proficiency. In most cases, the same is true by demographic group.

Jeff gave accolades and asked if this can be attributed to anything specifically, what the scores
tell the assessment team in terms of need or how to improve and what the game plan is. Brian
responded that the city gave an analysis of every kid who took the test. This shows every
question and how they did. This tells the team what to address moving forward. Mollie chimed in
that this was new to this year. Jeff asked about what improvements the team is seeing. Mollie
gave credit to having a larger staff. This allows for small group instruction that is more tailored
for each child’s needs. She said it is the people and the brains in the building that can support
each other. Matthew chimed in that the students are growing at a greater rate than the city,
district and state. Jeff asked Ceilia (parent) if the parents appreciate the depth. Ceilia said they do
and that it helps how the assessment team makes themselves available and shares context on the
parent role in the school towards continual improvement. Reid asked if two teachers in a
classroom is common. It was discussed that this is not normally the case in other schools.

6. Old Business
None

7. New Business
None

Meeting adjourned.



Minutes of Board of Trustees Meeting - Growing Up Green Charter School
Tuesday, October 27, 2015, 7:00 p.m.

1. Attendance

» Board members present: Board Chair, Jeff Muller; Vice Chair, Kyla Kuperstein; School
Leader, Matthew Greenberg; PTO Co-President, Tonia Nelson

» Board members on the phone /video conference: Officer, Kate Hooker

» Board members not present: Secretary, Kurt Shuman; Treasurer, Reid Chase
Motion was moved to begin the meeting, and the motion was seconded

2. Financial Update

» Gina Palma provided an update on the financials

o Strength of the schools financials look

o Projecting that our end of year surplus will surpass the schools budget projections.

3. School Update
» The school leader Matthew Greenberg then spoke about how well the school year was
going thus far. He said that the staff was working exceptionally hard, and well together.

» Talked about how well the new hires have worked out in the elementary and middle school.
He said instruction looks terrific.

» Matthew then talked about a woman's homeless shelter that was moving into the
community and how the school has formed a community partnership with them. He went on to
talk about the first committee meeting held last week which included parents from the school,
and leaders from the organization running the shelter. This committee will continue to meet
once a month for the rest of the school year.

4. PTO News

» Tonia Nelson, Co-PTO president spoke about PTO this year: meetings have been tightened
up, the flow of information between school and parent community has improved as a result of
the hiring of a parent coordinator, and monthly town hall meetings with the principal. Tonia also
spoke about upcoming parent fundraisers, and events.

5. Old Business
> No old business was discussed

6. New Business
> No new business was discussed

7. Meeting Conclusion
» The board concluded its meeting by a motion to adjourn, which was seconded and
approved



Minutes of Board of Trustees Maesting - Growing Up Green Charter School
Tuesday, Decamber 8, 2015, 7:00 p.m.

Attendance

Board mambers present: Boand Chair - Jaff Muwaller, Viee Chalr — Kyls Kuplarstein,
Treasurar - Reid Chase, Officer - Kale Hooker,

Baard members on the phone | video conference; Kurt Shumen
Board members not present: nfa

Cthars present: Matihew Greenberg — Sehaol Leader, Gina Falma, Director of Finance
{on Phona), Presthi Krishnamurthy — Perent Rap on Board

BMation was moved 1o begin the maeting, and the moticn was saconded

2 Financipl Update
¥ Financial renviesw with Gina
¥ Higher SPFED number givas us an overage
* Sams llengs are over &5 werns in the pasl report.
P Sl well shesd due bo Tacillies savings: refro payment from ConEd.
¥ Over on lech one lime unespecied.
*  Slill betlom line suplus of BI00K. Belter fhan the budgst sgain.
3. Bchool Update
¥ Presathl Krishnamurihy inlreduced hersell, she is the naw parent rep and has 2 children,
18! and &th grade,
4, O Business
¥ erea hotal is now the Acacia network shefier for women.

E
*

k

‘Welarie, 8 manager, agreed to mesl with GUGCS parenls.

bt bwice; school will do & holiday ditve for them. Parents looking to build a good
relaionship.

IU's & cily leasing arangemant. 27 ather hotals; hoping that thera will not be mona
Gorfvergions, Jimmy van Bremer has had famiy responses to that effact.

5, Mew Business

*
-]

SED application for new scheol.

Family concemns aboul whether resources will be pulled shared. They've bean resssured
that thal won't B (he case.

6, Mesting Conclusion

Tha Brard concludan e masting by 5 mndion b adjnoen, wkich s sscardad and appeousd



Minutes of Board of Trustees Meeting — Growing Up Green Charter School

Tuesday, January 26, 2016, 6:30 p.m.

1. Attendance

a. Board members present: Board Chair, Jeff Muller; Vice Chair, Kyla

Kupferstein; Board Treasurer, Reid Chase; Board Member, Kate Hooker;

Parent Representative, Preethie Krishnamurthy;

b. Nonboard members present: School Leader, Matthew Greenberg; prospective board member,
Kathryn Klingenstein; Program Coordinator, Jennifer Pearsall; Director of Finance, Gina Palma
(via phone); and prospective School Leader of GUG Il, Nancy Wong

Motion was moved to begin the meeting: made by Board Chair, Jeff Mueller, and
second by Vice Chair, Kyla Kupferstein. A Quorum was confirmed by the Board Chair,
Jeff Mueller

2. Financial Update

a. Gina Palma provided an update on the financials

i. Reviewed the financials

ii. Strength of the schools financials

iii. Net income looks to surpass the budgeted amount — partially due to
higher SpEd number

3. School Update

a. Matthew Greenberg provided an update on the schools

i. 5k anticipated donation

ii. Overall, instruction is going very well at the elementary school, and the middle school.

iii. The new staff this year on the academic side, and operations department of been very
successful this year.

iv. 5 tmgrade students recently returned from their 3 overnight trip to Frost Valley, which was a
huge success.

v. Thanked Brittany Tuber for her never ending work with UPK application for both GUG I, and
GUG I

4. Old Business
a. No old business was discussed

5. New Business
a. No new business was discussed

6. Meeting Conclusion
a. The board concluded the meeting by a motion to adjourn, which was seconded and approved



Growing up Green Charter School
Board Minutes 3/29/16
In attendance:

Matthew Greenberg
Kyla Kupferstein

Reid Chase

Jeff Mueller

Kathryn Klingenstein
Kate Hooker

Nancy Wong

Steve Viola

Preethi Krishnamurthy
John Deitrich

Gina Palma (on phone)

GUG | Minutes:

The meeting was called to order by Jeff Mueller

The board briefly discussed the nomination of Kathryn Klingenstein to serve as a member of the
board, subject to board approval. Kyla Kupferstein moved to approve the nomination, Reid
Chase seconded the motion, and all board members voted aye.

Gina Palma then reviewed the school’s financials with the board, which involve a projected
surplus of approximately $331,000. In addition, Matthew noted that it is expected that Governor
Cuomo will sign a new budget on April 1 that will give GUG a $225 per child increase in state
funding.

Matthew informed the board about the upcoming state exam testing period for both ELA and
Math, and explained that this year’s tests will be untimed. He also updated the board on hiring
for the middle school, which is almost complete.

The board then briefly discussed the recent funding equity press conference organized by
Families for Excellent Schools and the push to achieve facilities funding for charter schools like
GUG.

Matthew reminded the board that the PTO fundraiser for GUG would take place the following
Saturday. With no old business to discuss, Jeff moved to adjourn the meeting, Kate seconded,
and all board members approved the motion.



Growing up Green Charter School |
Board Minutes 5/24/16

In attendance:

Matthew Greenberg

Kate Hooker

Gina Palma (on phone)

Kathryn Klingenstein (on phone)
Nancy Wong (on phone)

Jeff Mueller

Preethi Krishnamurthy

Kersten Russell

Kristen Lengyel

GUGCS | Meeting

Jeff called the meeting to order, Kate seconded

Gina went over the financials with the Board and explained that they looked good overall and
that there is a $35K projected surplus. The Board had no questions about the financials.
Matthew provided school updates, which included the fact that 3,000 applications have been
received this year for 100+ seats. He indicated that he is very pleased with those numbers and
discussed the goal of getting both schools under SED. Matthew also discussed the need to fill
several staff positions before next year.

There was no old business to discuss, and for new business Matthew told the Board about the
numerous field trips the student have been going on. Then he turned over the floor to Ms.
Russell and Ms. Langle, who spoke about their roles at the school and some specific areas of
focus, like the advisory program, and the high school placement process. Next, Tanya reported
on the recent PTO fundraiser, which was changed slightly this year. It was moved from the
church basement to a hotel down the street and the auction was tightened up significantly to
only 7-10 items for the live auction. The auction raised about $19,000 this year, S10K of which
will be apportioned to elementary school ed time, and $5K of which will be held out for capital
improvements. The remaining $S5K or so will be used for middle school ed time. The original
plan to upgrade the recess yard with a new surface eventually had to be scrapped because the
Diocese has been reluctant to grant permission for that project.

With nothing further to discuss.

Jeff moved to adjourn the meeting and Kate seconded.



GUGCS Board Meeting June 21, 2016, 7pm

Attendance:
Kathryn, Preethi, Matthew, Jeff, Gina, Kyla, Jennifer Pearsall

Gina began the meeting by walking the board through the financials, reflecting the actual
numbers through May 31 and projections ending on June 30. She explained that there is a big
overage in revenue that is attributed to additional SPED coverage. Overages and expenses were
the same since the last board meeting, and nothing new had come up in the interim. Net
income is $326,000, which is S10K more than what was initially budgeted.

Kate moved to approve 2016-17 budget, Kathryn seconded the motion, no one opposed.
The board then turned to the CSBM contract for next year that needed to be approved. No
board members had any questions about the contracts, Kathryn moved to approve them, Kate

seconded. Everyone else was in favor.

Matthew then provided an update on school events going on at the end of the year, including
moving up day for 5™ graders on Thursday, and Kindergarten moving in day on Friday.

Jeff reminded the board that Matthew’s contract is expiring soon and needs to be addressed by
the Board needs to address. Jeff said that he will begin the process of discussing comps with

CSBM, and the board will discuss the matter further over the summer.

Kate moved to close the meeting, Kathryn seconded.



GUGCS has made a good faith effort to meet the enrollment and retention targets set
for it by the state. It has used strategies that have yielded large numbers of
applicants, a lengthy waiting list, and a diverse student body. Growing Up Green has
a positive presence in the community through partnerships and service learning
activities. It has built over time a network of like-minded individuals, organizations
and agencies, many of which work directly with at-risk youth and their families.
Furthermore, the “green” aspects of the school are clearly described in marketing
materials, presentations, and discussions with interested families. For students with
disabilities, the school website and recruitment materials clearly describe the
school’s inclusion model, special education services and staffing as well as
counseling supports. Furthermore, our Director of Special Education participates in
recruitment activities. In order to recruit English Language Learners, our materials
are translated, our ELL program is described, and our ELL Coordinator and teachers
assist with recruitment. We also have bilingual staff to help families with the
application process. The majority of our students are eligible for free and reduced
lunch and, having built a positive reputation in the community, word of mouth is
particularly effective in attracting these students to our school. We make it clear
that our school is free and provides support services and extra-curricular
opportunities to all students, regardless of need and income. Should the results of
the random lottery not yield sufficient numbers to meet enrollment targets, the
school’s board will consider adding at-risk preferences to its admissions policy with
the permission of its authorizer.

Regarding retention, GUGCS has a track record of strong student retention; any
student leaving the school is primarily due to family relocation. We have achieved
this success by developing a close, supportive community among students, staff and
families through regular communication and events such as orientations, family
workshops, conferences, celebrations and performances. Moreover, the school
retains students classified with disabilities through the scope of services it offers to
serve a variety of student needs. For example, GUGCS provides an ICT class on each
grade and special education services, such as speech and language therapy,
occupational therapy, hearing services, counseling, and physical therapy. Our ELL
Coordinator and ELL teachers support limited English proficient students through
immersion techniques direct instruction, and the use of the SIOP model. GUGCS is a
school where students and their families are known well by the faculty and staff and
students do not fall through the cracks. We also work closely with community
organizations to ensure families have the supports they need so their children can
succeed.
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Report changes in teacher and administrator staffing.

Page 1

Entry 12 Teacher and Administrator Attrition

Instructions for completing the Teacher and Administrator Attrition Tables

The following tables reflect formatting in the online portal required for Regents

authorized charter schools. Schools should provide, for teachers and

administrators only, the full time equivalent (FTE) of staff on June 30, 2015; the
FTE for added staff from jJuly 1, 2015 through June 30, 2016; and the FTE for any
departed staff from July 1, 2015 through June 30, 2016 using the two tables

provided.

2015-16 Teacher Attrition Table

FTE Teachers on FTE Teachers

June 30, 2015 Departed
7/1/15 -
6/30/16

54 6

FTE Teachers
Filling Vacant
Positions 7/1/15
- 6/30/16

6

2015-16 Administrator Position Attrition Table

FTE FTE

Administrative Administrators

Positions on Departed

June 30, 2015 7/1/15 -
6/30/16

33 4

Thank you

FTE
Administrators
Filling Vacant
Positions 7/1/15
- 6/30/16

4

1of1

FTE Teachers
Added in New
Positions
7/1/15-6/30/16

29

FTE
Administrators
Added in New
Positions
7/1/15-6/30/16

1

FTE of Teachers
on June 30,
2016

83

FTE
Administrative
Positions on
June 30, 2016

34



ﬁ Entry 13 Uncertified Teachers

Created: 07/20/2016
Last updated: 07/21/2016

Page 1

The table below is reflective of the information collected through the online
portal for compliance with New York State Education Law 2854(3)(a-1) for
teaching staff qualifications. Enter the relevant full time equivalent (FTE) count
of teachers in each column. For example, a school with 20 full time teachers and
5 half time teachers would have an FTE count of 22.5. If more than one column
applies to a particular teacher, please select one column for the FTE count.

Staff Qualifications (June 30, 2016)

Note: Columns should sum to the FTE count of Teachers on June 30, 2016, and each
teacher should be in only one column.

1. FTE Count of Uncertified Teachers (6-30-15) 4

2. FTE count of uncertified teacher with at least
three years of elementary, middle or secondary 6
classroom teaching experience (6-30-15)

3. FTE count of uncertified teachers who are tenured
or tenure track college faculty (6-30-15)

4. FTE count of uncertified teachers with two years
of Teach for America experience (6-30-15)

5. FTE count of uncertified teachers with exceptional
business, professional, artistic, athletic, or military 0
experience (6-30-15)

6. FTE count of uncertified teachers who do not fit
into any of the prior four categories

Total 10.0

Thank you.

1of1
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30t & 315t 1pm Dismissal

August 2016 September 2016 October 2016
S| M| T |W|Th| F | Sa S| M| T |W/|Th| F | Sa S| M| T |W|Th| F | Sa
1 2 3 4 5 6 1 2 3 1
7 8 9 |10 | 11|12 | 13 4 5 6 7 8 9 110 2 3 4 5 6 7 8
14 115 |16 | 17 | 18 | 19 | 20 11 112 | 13 | 14 | 15 | 16 | 17 9 |10 | 11 [ 12 | 13 | 14 | 15
21 122 | 23 | 24 | 25 | 26 | 27 18 | 19| 20 | 21 | 22 | 23 | 24 16 | 17 | 18 | 19
28 | 29 | 30 [ 31 25 | 26 | 27 | 28 | 29 | 30 23 | 24 | 25 | 26 | 27 | 28 | 29
30 | 31
15— 260 GUG Summer PD 5t Labor Day 3rd & 4! Rosh Hashanah
29" First Day of School 1pm Dismissal 8t Busing begins for grades K-6 10t Columbus Day
12t Eid al-Adha 12t Yom Kippur

15t MS Family Curriculum Night

17ht — 21st Six Week Assessment

19t Picture Dai

November 2016 December 2016 January 2017
S| M| T | W |Th| F | Sa S| M| T | W |Th| F | Sa S| M| T | W|Th| F | Sa
1 2 3 4 5 1 2 3 1 2 3 4 5 6 7
6 7 8 9 |10 [ 11 ] 12 4 5 6 7 8 9 | 10 8 9 |10 | 1112 |13 | 14
13114 115116 |17 | 18 | 19 1M1 112 113 [ 14 115 | 16 | 17 15116 117 [ 18119120 | 2
20 | 21 | 22 | 23 | 24 | 26 | 26 18 1 19 [ 20 | 21 | 22 | 23 | 24 22 | 23 | 24 | 25 28
27 | 28 | 29 | 30 25 26 | 27 | 28 | 29 | 30 | 3 29 | 30 | 31
8t Election Day (Staff PD Day) 5t — 9t Six Week Assessment 2n Winter Recess
11t Veterans Day 20" Winter Carnival 1pm Dismissal 160 MLK Da
215t & 229ES Family Conferences 21st — 31st Winter Recess
231 — 25" Thanksgiving Break
February 2017 March 2017 April 2017
S| M| T |W|Th| F | Sa S| M| T |W|Th| F | Sa S| M| T |W|Th| F | Sa
1 2 3 4 1 2 3 4 1
516 |7 |89 ][10]M11 5167|819 [10]11 2 | 3|4 56|78
12 |13 | 14 | 15 | 16 | 17 | 18 12 |13 | 14 | 15 | 16 | 17 | 18 9 |10 | 11|12 | 13 | 14 | 15
19 20 | 21 | 22 | 23 | 24 | 25 19 120 | 21 | 22 | 23 | 24 | 25 16 [ 17 | 18 | 19 | 20 | 21 | 22
26 | 27 | 28 26 | 27 | 28 | 29 | 30 | 31 23 | 24 | 25 | 26 29
30
6t — 10t Six Week Assessment 9t & 10t ES Family Conferences 10t — 18™ Spring Recess
20t — 24t Mid-Winter Recess 27t — 315 Six Week Assessment (K-2) *
28t — 30t ELA State Tests (3-8 grades)
May 2017 June 2017 July 2017
S| M| T | W/ |Th| F | Sa S| M| T |W|Th| F | Sa S| M| T |W|Th| F | Sa
1 2 3 4 5 6 1 2 3 1
7 8 9 |10 | 11|12 ] 13 4 5 6 7 8 9 | 10 2 3 4 5 6 7 8
14 |15 |16 | 17 | 18 | 19 | 20 11 (12 | 13| 14 | 15 | 16 | 17 9 |10 | 11|12 |13 |14 ] 15
21 122 | 23 | 24 | 25 | 26 | 27 18 119 | 20 | 21 | 22 | 23 | 24 16 | 17 | 18 [ 19 ] 20 | 21 | 22
28 | 29 | 30 | 31 25 |1 26 | 27 | 28 | 29 | 30 23 | 24 | 25 | 26 | 27 | 28 | 29
30 | 31

2nd — 4t Math State Testing (3-8 grades)
15t — 19t Fast Bridge Testing
24" — June 2 Science Performance
State Tests (41 & 84 Grade)

26" & 29 Memorial Day

5t Science Written State Testing (4» & 8»
Grade)
5t — ot Six Week Assessment

239 Last Day of School (1pm Dismissal)

Total Instructional Days: 180

Key

No School for Students

1pm Dismissal

Elementari Conferences - 1im dismissal

Rev 4.13.16

Subject to Change
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